
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;   

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___  

 
3. INVOCATION 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. PRESENTATION 
 

a. County Attorney Lando Voyles presentation on domestic violence and the 
new Family Advocacy Center in San Tan Valley, Arizona.   
 

b. Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 
Service Masters as the Business of the Month. 
 

7. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part 
of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
a. *Approval of  the purchase of one (1) Tymco 600 Regenerative Air Sweeper 

for the Public Works Department from H&E Equipment Services.  
 

mariah
Highlight



b. *Approval to  reimburse Electrical District No. 2 for the relocation of poles 
to accommodate road widening and signalization on Diversion Dam Road 
and State Highway 79 intersection, in an amount not to exceed $53,307.84.  
 

c. *Approval of the September 2 and September 15, 2014 Town Council 
minutes. 

 
d. *Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. August 20, 2014 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board minutes. 
ii. June 19, July 10, and September 4, 2014 Planning and Zoning 

Commission minutes. 
 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Update from Parks and Recreation Director Bryan Hughes on the Library 
and Recreation Complex Construction Project. 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the resignation of Jeff D. Wooley from 
the Planning and Zoning Commission with regrets and authorization for 
staff to advertise board and commission vacancies.  

 
b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract with R.K. 

Sanders, Inc., for Diversion Dam Road-Street Improvements Project, in an 
amount not to exceed $1,021,985.10. 
 

c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of  entering into a lease agreement with 
the Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Company) for 
the Silver King Marketplace, Suite 102. 
 

d. Resolution No. 1473-14: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE PERSONNEL 
POLICY. 

 
10. MANAGER’S REPORT 

11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
POSTED ON OCTOBER 15, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Wayne Costa, P.E. 
                                     Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Purchase of a new Tymco 600 
Regenerative  
                     Air Sweeper  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Purchase of Tymco 600 Regenerative Air Sweeper       Meeting Date:  October 20, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the purchase of one Tymco 600 Regenerative Air Sweeper for 
the Public Works Department from H&E Equipment Services.  

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
In Federal Fiscal Year 2014, Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) 
solicited region wide funding for PM-10 certified street sweepers through its 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funding.  The Town submitted an 
application and was awarded funding. 

The acquisition of this sweeper will update our sweeper units, allow a sweeper to 
be placed at the community facilities area on Hunt Highway, increase sweeping 
frequency, and increase lane miles to be swept, per cycle, to 154 miles. 

The Alternate Bid Procedure/Cooperative Purchasing section of the Purchasing 
Policy allows the Town to utilize the City of Sierra Vista’s Project No. A1-033 with 
H&E Equipment Services; thus, waiving the requirements to obtain sealed bids 
since Sierra Vista has taken all the appropriate procurement efforts in soliciting 
quotations for the sweeper. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
In the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year Budget, Town Council approved funding to 
purchase one Public Works Street Sweeper and the necessary equipment to 
outfit the vehicle.  Funding is allocated in the Grants Fund Account No. 287-506-
505 for the CMAQ funding which will reimburse the Town for the costs of the 
Sweeper to a value of $171,210.65 and the Town will fund the balance of 
approximately $13,760.00. 



Subject:  Purchase of Tymco 600 Regenerative Air Sweeper       Meeting Date:  October 20, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Town Council authorize the purchase of one 2015 Tymco 
600 Regenerative Air Sweeper for the Public Works Department to H&E 
Equipment Services. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Approval to Use Alternate Bid Procedure/Cooperative Purchasing 
 H&E Equipment Services Quote and Specifications 
 MAG Regional Council letter approving Town of Florence on its’ prioritized 

list of PM-10 Certified Street Sweeper Projects for FY 2014 CMAG 
Funding 
 















































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Wayne J. Costa, P.E. 
                                     Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval to Reimburse Electrical District  
                     No. 2 for Relocation of Poles on Diversion  
                     Dam Road 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  ED2 Reimbursement for relocation of poles                 Meeting Date:  October 20, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to reimburse Electrical District No. 2 for the relocation of poles to 
accommodate road widening and signalization on Diversion Dam Road and State 
Highway 79 intersection, in an amount not to exceed $53,307.84.  

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
Diversion Dam Road is to be widened by the Town and a traffic signal will be 
installed at the intersection with State Route 79 allowing a decrease in traffic 
congestion and additional capacity to high volume vehicular movements. 

In order to complete the necessary improvements for widening and the 
appropriate signalization appurtenances.  In this case, the poles are owned by 
Electrical District No. 2 which also allocates space and capacity to San Carlos 
Irrigation Project who will be supplying power to the ADOT Signalization Project 
at the intersection of State Highway 79 and Diversion Dam. 

This action authorizes Town staff to complete this widening project and allow the 
Town to seek any necessary easements required. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The current fiscal year budget funds $1,250,000 for the Diversion Dam Road 
Improvements within Fund No. 012-566-507.  Previously, the Town reimbursed 
ADOT one-third of their Signalization Project costs with contribution by CCA.  
 
 
 
 



Subject:  ED2 Reimbursement for relocation of poles                 Meeting Date:  October 20, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that a purchase order be awarded to Electrical District No. 2 
for $53,307.42 for relocation of poles.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Electrical District No. 2 Proposal entitled Work Order Authorization No. 12074. 

 
 





MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 2, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:05 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño 
Absent: Walter, Woolridge 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 1 of 11 

INVOCATION 
 
Mayor Rankin allowed for a moment of silence.  

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 

 
Mr. John Dantico, Iron Horse Ranch Resident, stated that he is opposed to the 
annexation of Magic Ranch.  He stated the Town is in violation of Arizona State Statutes 
based on the petition that was filed with Pinal County. 

 
Ms. Barbara Manning, Florence Resident, stated the vote on Home Rule resulted in a 
vote of no confidence in the Town Council and the Town Manager.  She stated that this 
vote will result in a modification to the aquatic/library project.  
 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
*Appointment of Kamian E. Harmon to the Library Advisory Board with a term to 
expire December 31, 2015. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 2 of 11 

*Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department 
of Liquor License and Control for the Coolidge-Florence Elks Lodge 2350 
application for a Special Event Liquor License for a fundraiser to be held on 
October 5, 2014, at the Charles Whitlow Memorial Rodeo Grounds.   

 
*Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department 
of Liquor License and Control for the Pinal County Historical Society Museum’s 
application for a Special Event Liquor License for a fundraiser to be held on 
October 24, 2014, at the Pinal County Historical Society Museum.   

 
*Approval of accepting the register of demands ending July 31, 2014, in the 
amount of $4,062,456.73.  

 
Mayor Rankin inquired why the warrant register is so high for the month of July. 
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, stated that the semi-annual payment of principle and 
interest on the GO Bonds as well as the Special Assessment Lien Bonds are included. 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 619-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 619-14 by title 
only.   
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF 
TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND 
AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS 
TO THE EXISTING TOWN LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND 
PROVIDING FOR A RESCISSION OF SUCH ANNEXATION IF THE ANNEXATION IS 
CHALLENGED (MAGIC RANCH ANNEXATION NO. 2013-01) (First reading held on 
August 4, 2014). 
 
Ms. Garcia stated the Town processed annexation petitions totaling 54.3177% of the 
property owners who signed that they are in favor of the annexation.  The total petitions 
equate to an assessed evaluation of 56.5652%. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
Roll Call: 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 3 of 11 

Councilmember Montaño:  Yes 
Councilmember Celaya:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Smith:  Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion passed:  Yes: 5; No: 0 
 
Ordinance No. 620-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 620-14 by title 
only.   

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF 
TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND 
AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS 
TO THE EXISTING TOWN LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND 
PROVIDING FOR A RESCISSION OF SUCH ANNEXATION IF THE ANNEXATION IS 
CHALLENGED (ARIZONA FARMS ANNEXATION NO. 2013-02) (First reading held 
on August 4, 2014). 
 
Ms. Garcia stated the Town processed annexation petitions totaling 60.177% of the 
property owners who signed that they are in favor of the annexation.  The total petitions 
equate to an assessed evaluation of 68.59%. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 620-14. 
 
Roll Call: 
Councilmember Montaño:  Yes 
Councilmember Celaya:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Smith:  Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion passed:  Yes: 5; No: 0 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the annexations will take effective on October 2, 2014, which 
is thirty days from adoption of the ordinances.  He said the citizens of these two areas 
will become citizens of the Town of Florence and will be able to participate in the 
November election for Town Council members. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 4 of 11 

Ordinance No. 623-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 623-14 by title 
only.   
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE “TOWN OF FLORENCE ZONING MAP” BY CHANGING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OF CERTAIN PARCELS OF LAND FROM PINAL 
COUNTY PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT (PAD) 
AND GENERAL RURAL ZONE (GR) TO TOWN OF FLORENCE PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) ZONING DISTRICT AND SINGLE–RESIDENTIAL 
RANCHETTE (R1-R) ZONING DISTRICT (MAGIC RANCH ANNEXATION 
COMPARABLE/INITIAL ZONING). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the ordinance is for the 
adoption of the initial comparable zoning of the annexation area.  

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 623-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 624-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 624-14 by title 
only.   

  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE “TOWN OF FLORENCE ZONING MAP” BY CHANGING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OF CERTAIN PARCELS OF LAND FROM PINAL 
COUNTY PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT (PAD), 
GENERAL RURAL ZONE (GR), SINGLE RESIDENCE ZONE (CR-1A) AND 
MANUFACTURED HOME ZONE (MH) TO TOWN OF FLORENCE PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) ZONING DISTRICT, SINGLE–RESIDENTIAL RANCHETTE 
(R1-R) ZONING DISTRICT AND RURAL RESIDENTIAL EQUESTRIAN SUBDIVISION 
(RRES) ZONING DISTRICT (ARIZONA FARMS ANNEXATION 
COMPARABLE/INITIAL ZONING).  

 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the ordinance is for the 
adoption of the initial comparable zoning of the annexation area. The Manufactured 
Home Zone will be RRES zoning, which was created specifically for the Wild Horse 
Ranch area.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 624-14. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 613-14 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 5 of 11 

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 613-14 by title 
only.   
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE ASHBURN AT MAGIC RANCH PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
(PZC-20-14-PUD) (First reading held on August 4, 2014) 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated the next five items have 
been reviewed in detail in previous meetings. The five properties have asked if they are 
annexed, they would like to receive modified zoning.  Four of the properties were 
already proceeding to change to Master Planned Communities with Pinal County.  
Lookout Mountain II, which is State Land, is different and its zoning is rural designation 
and will be changed to Master Plan for multi-family and commercial when annexed into 
the Town.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 613-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 618-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 618-14 by title 
only.   
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE RESERVE AT LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PZC-02-14-PUD) (First reading held on August 4, 2014). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 618-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 614-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 614-14 by title 
only.   
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN II PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PZC-
21-14-PUD) (First reading held on August 4, 2014). 

 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 614-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 616-14 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 6 of 11 

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 616-14 by title 
only.   
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE ARIZONA FARMS WEST PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PZC-
24-14-PUD) (First reading held on August 4, 2014). 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 616-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 617-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 617-14 by title 
only.   
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE ARIZONA FARMS EAST PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PZC- 
25-14-PUD) (First reading held on August 4, 2014). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 617-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 621-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 621-14 by title 
only.   

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 32 OF THE FLORENCE TOWN CODE BY ADDING ARTICLE 
32, SECTION § 32.200 ESTABLISHING AN ARTS AND CULTURE COMMISSION IN 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE.  (First reading held on August 18, 2014) 
 
Ms. Garcia stated the ordinance will place provisions into Town Code to allow for an 
arts program when the Town is ready. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated he has received calls from concerned citizens inquiring 
if it is appropriate to be spending $100,000 on this program, with the loss of Home Rule.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated the $100,000 for an arts program was budgeted in the current budget; 
the loss of Home Rule does not affect the current budget.  She stated that Home Rule 
does not affect the collection of monies; it affects how the Town is to spend monies.  
She stated that while this ordinance will become part of the Town Code, it will be up to 
Council if the program will be seeded when adopting the 2015-2016 Fiscal Year Budget.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired what the spending protocol will be for the program. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 7 of 11 

Ms. Garcia stated Council has the discretion to spend or not spend money.  If the 
Council seeds the program this year and the program is created, monies can be spent 
based on the purchase criteria of the Commission and Town Code.  She said the 
Commission can find alternative ways to bring culture to the community in the following 
year.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Town Codes and approval limits would be followed and any 
expense over $24,999 must go to Council for approval.  She said anything under 
$24,999 can be approved by the Town Manager. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated the Town does not have expenditure limitations based on Home Rule 
this year.  She stated that the Town Council will have a work session with the Finance 
Director to explain what the expenditure limitation means to the Town.  The expenditure 
limitation goes into effect on July 1, 2015. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated the importance of the ordinance is to create the 
foundation for the program whether or not the Town has the funding for it. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he has been working with staff to prepare information for the 
Council and the public regarding the ramifications of the Home Rule vote and the fiscal 
effects it will have.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 621-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 622-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 622-14 by title 
only.   

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING TITLE IX – GENERAL REGULATION, BY AMENDING, DELETING AND 
REPLACING CHAPTER 90, ANIMALS; DEFINITIONS; PENALTY.  (First reading 
held on August 18, 2014) 

 
Mr. Daniel Hughes, Police Chief, stated that the ordinance allows for minor changes 
which will allow officers to issue citations and better manage the Town’s agreement with 
Pinal County Animal Control. 
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if the ordinance only applies to dogs. 
 
Police Chief Hughes stated the primary complaint is for dogs; however, if another 
animal is a concern they will assist with that complaint. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 622-14. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 8 of 11 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a contract with Currier Construction, 
Inc., for improvements at the South Wastewater Treatment Plant, including the 
reuse pump station, chlorine facility upgrade, and operations building expansion, 
in an amount not to exceed $1,549,184.00. 
 
Mr. John Mitchell, Utilities Director, stated this project was an ADEQ Consent Order that 
was entered into in August 2013.  The consent order addressed a number of items at 
the south plant including corrective measures for identification and correction of 
reported exceedances in effluent water.  Many of the items have already been 
addressed.  
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that three bids were received. Sun Western Contractors submitted 
two bid schedules, thereby making them not-responsive. Currier Construction, Inc., 
became the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that the current CIP budget provides funding for the first $1,076,100; 
identified as CIP projects SU-83, SU-79 and SU-51.  He said it is being recommended 
that the remaining balance come from the reallocation of funds identified for future 
growth projects.  Three future growth projects; SU-05, SU-06 and SU-11, are funded in 
the current budget, are proposed to be eliminated and reintroduced in the future as 
growth becomes certain. The three projects total $605,000. 
 
Mr. Mitchell introduced Mr. Rob Bryant, Water Works Engineers, who was present to 
answer any technical questions regarding the project. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to enter into a contract with Currier Construction, Inc., for improvements at the 
South Wastewater Treatment Plant, including the reuse pump station, chlorine facility 
upgrade, and operations building expansion, in an amount not to exceed $1,549,184.00. 
 
Resolution No. 1479-14 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1479-14 by 
title only.   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF JUDGE KATHERINE KAISER AS A 
JUVENILE HEARING OFFICER. 
 
Mr. James Mannato, Town Attorney, stated Judge Kaiser was appointed to act as a 
Juvenile Hearing Officer by order of Pinal County Superior Court on December 20, 
2012.   He said, pursuant to A.R.S. § 8-323, this appointment must be approved by the 
Town Council to give it the necessary authority required.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 9 of 11 

On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1479 -14. 

 
DEPARTMENT REPORT 

Manager’s Report 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, noted there was no written report.  
She thanked all of the residents who came out to vote in the election.  She stated that 
the election results will be canvassed at the September 15, 2014, Council meeting.  She 
stated the residents within the annexation areas who are registered with Pinal County 
Voter Registration are eligible to vote in the November 4, 2014, election.  If a citizen is 
not registered and would like to vote in the November 4, 2014, they will need to register 
with Pinal County Voter Registration. 
 
Ms. Garcia acknowledged the Department Heads for their efforts regarding the 
annexations. 
 
Department Reports 

Community Development 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 
Utilities 

 
The Department Reports were received and filed. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, stated that she disagrees that the Home Rule vote 
was a vote of no confidence.  The aquatic center and library project is something the 
Town needs and it is vital for all residents.  If the project is not continued, the Town will 
not have a library or a pool.  She stated that the project is for all residents in our 
community. 
 
Ruth Harrison, Florence Resident, requested that a large portion of the $100,000 for the 
arts program be earmarked for performing arts such as music, drama, and dance, and 
cultural fine arts. She said performing arts will enhance the lives of our residents and 
bring people to Florence.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 10 of 11 

Councilmember Hawkins stated that nothing has been finalized with regards to the 
aquatic center and library project.  He said the Council is in the discussion phase and 
the election showed that many community members are not in favor of the direction the 
Council is going on the project and/or the amount of money that is being considered to 
be spent.  He requested more hearings on the project and for more citizen involvement.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that for over ten years, the citizens have been asking the 
Council why the Town has nothing for its children and adults. The citizens have also 
inquired why nothing has been done to correct this deficiency.  The Town has always 
said it needs a larger population and more roof tops to fund these types of projects.  
The aquatic center and library project will fill the needs and wants of the community.  
The Home Rule vote was a vote of public misinformation. Many of our citizens thought 
the Town was trying to raise their taxes with Home Rule. The Town will still collect the 
taxes, however, the Home Rule will set the annual budget amount and how it can spend 
those monies. The Town is in a good financial position to provide these amenities and 
does not want to lose this opportunity.    
 
Councilmember Montaño thanked the staff for displaying the flags along Main Street 
during Labor Day.  He said the flags showed patriotism and unity.  He said that he 
agrees with Councilmember Celaya and Denise Kollert regarding the aquatic center and 
library project.  It is important to understand when the Town builds an amenity it is for 
everyone. He stated he recently visited Maricopa, and they have built an indoor 
recreational development which offers a gymnasium, aquatics and basketball courts 
that can be used year round.  The Town has an opportunity to build an indoor facility for 
all ages which can also be used year round.  The Town has the funds to build the 
aquatic center and library and is looking at multiple funding paths to determine which 
will be most fiscally responsible. 
  
Councilmember Montaño stated that Home Rule will affect the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
Budget.  He said he is concerned that construction will be limited, specifically roads and 
streets.  He said he would like to see the Town complete as many construction and road 
repair projects as possible this fiscal year, specifically areas where there are temporary 
signs and rough roads.      
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that the American Legion is responsible for placing the flags 
throughout Main Street.  He said the Town provides the American Legion the flags.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated he takes responsibility for the Home Rule not passing.  He said he 
did not make many public appearances, and he could have visited more organizations. 
He does not feel the vote was a loss in confidence of the Council.  The vote shows that 
the community is coming together as Anthem residents voted in favor of Home Rule.  
He stated that the Town experienced a reduction in voters this past election which is 
very discouraging. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated the September 15, 2014 Council Meeting will provide information 
regarding on how the Home Rule will impact the Town.  Information will also be 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 2, 2014 
Page 11 of 11 

provided regarding the aquatic center and library project and how the money can be 
spent.  He stated that for the past 12 years the Town has been in a planning phase.  It 
is time now for the Town to spend the money and move forward with the plans to create 
facilities for all citizens of Florence. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Celaya, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:01 pm. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on September 2, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:05 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL: 

 
Present: Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge 

 
INVOCATION 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 1 of 22 
 
 

Councilmember Woolridge led the Invocation. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Randy Rosane, Florence Resident, stated that they will have a 2015 Kickoff for ALS 
event at the River Bottom Grill, the weekend of September 19, 2014.  Community 
leaders have volunteered to sit in a dunk tank to help raise funds.  
 
Mr. Scott Barber, Director, Pinal County Federal Credit Union, stated the Pinal County 
Federal Credit Union Board members and staff are looking forward to seeing the 
community at their new branch, which will open on September 29, 2014. The official 
ribbon-cutting ceremony and grand opening will be announced at a later date.  The 
Credit Union has been a member of the community since 1971.  
 
Mr. Chris Knutson, Assistant Superintendent Florence Unified School District, stated 
that anything positive that the Town can do for the youth in the community, such as the 
proposed library/aquatic center project, would be appreciated and beneficial to the 
children.  
Mr. Jim Tchida, Florence Resident, expressed his appreciation for the Council’s efforts 
on behalf of the Florence citizens.  He pointed out the improvements and the progress 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 2 of 22 
 
 

the Town has seen in the last few years.  He stated that the library/aquatic center and 
the extension of Main Street to Highway 79 are on tonight’s agenda and are important 
for the Town.  He said he hopes all residents will come together and focus on the future 
of Florence. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD.  

 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 

 
Public Hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the Feasibility Report relating to 
Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 (the “District”),  Assessment 
Area Seven – Units 9B, 16 and 17C (“Area 7”); and 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. MRCFD1 129-14: 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Clerk of the Board, read Resolution No. MRCFD1 129-14, by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
AND DELIVERY OF A SEVENTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS (ASSESSMENT 
AREA SEVEN   UNITS 9B, 16 and 17C) FOR DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT, 
FINANCING PARTICIPATION, WAIVER AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT (MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1); 
AUTHORIZING AND RATIFYING THE GIVING OF NOTICE OF HEARING WITH 
RESPECT TO APPROVING A FEASIBILITY REPORT WHICH INCLUDES 
IDENTIFYING THE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE PROJECTS, THE AREAS 
TO BE BENEFITTED, THE EXPECTED METHOD OF FINANCING AND THE 
SYSTEM OF PROVIDING REVENUES TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN THE 
PROJECTS, ALL AS PROVIDED IN SUCH REPORT; APPROVING SUCH 
FEASIBILITY REPORT AND RESOLVING THE INTENT THEREFOR; ORDERING 
THE WORK WITH RESPECT THERETO; APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT 
DIAGRAM AND METHOD OF ASSESSMENT WITH RESPECT TO ASSESSMENT 
AREA SEVEN AND PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF THE RELATED ASSESSMENT. 

 
Mr. Michael Farina, District Treasurer, stated that Assessment Area Seven contains 
approximately 52.88 acres and upon build out will comprise of approximately 208 single 
family residential lots.  The public infrastructure in Assessment Area Seven will consist 
of the following:  

 Storm drain   $208,116 
 Street improvements,  $887,397 
 Related engineering costs $467,234 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 3 of 22 
 
 

Mr. Farina stated that the total estimated cost is approximately $1,526,747.  The 
engineering and the storm drain improvements are complete and the street 
improvements are scheduled for completion in December 2014. 
 
He stated that the Special Assessment amount will pay for a portion of the total cost and 
will be divided equally among the 208 single-family residential lots in Area Seven.  He 
stated that the per-parcel amount will be $3,500, amortized over a 25-year period. As 
homes are sold, this amount will be assumed by the homebuyer. 
 
Chairman Rankin opened the public hearing.  There being no comments, Chairman 
Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Celaya, seconded by Boardmember Smith, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. MRCFD1 129-14. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD. 

 
On motion of Boardmember Montaño, seconded by Boardmember Walter, and carried 
to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 

 
Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 
Batteries + Bulbs as the Business of the Month. 
 
Mr. Jim Gilloon, Office Manager, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, recognized 
Batteries + Bulbs, as the business of the month for September, 2014.  He stated that 
there are 6 qualities the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Board looks for; 
professionalism, team work, expertise, passion, reliability and loyalty.  He stated 
Batteries + Bulbs had demonstrated over a period of time their dedication and support 
for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce.  
 
Ms. Glenda Stuart, Owner, Batteries + Bulbs, accepted the award and thanked the 
Chamber and Council for this recognition.   
 
CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
a. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1480-14 
 

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1480-14 by 
title only.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ACCEPTING NON-EXCLUSIVE ROADWAY EASEMENTS FOR THE EXTENSION OF 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 4 of 22 
 
 

MAIN STREET AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  
 

b. *Authorization to donate the modular building that was the temporary Fire 
Department Station 2 to the City of Phoenix Fire Department. 

 
c. *Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town 

of Winkelman regarding CDBG funds for the 2015 and 2016 funding cycle 
years. 
 

d. *Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the 
Superstition Fire and Medical District for maintenance services for fire 
apparatus. 

 
e. *Approval of the 2014 Groundwater Savings Agreement with Pinal County 

Water Augmentation Authority and Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation & Drainage 
District.  
 

f. *Approval of the July 31, August 4, and August 18, 2014 Town Council 
Minutes. 

 
g. *Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. April 30, and July 16, 2104 Historic District Advisory Commission 
minutes. 

ii. June 10 and July 16, 2014 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board minutes. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of items 9a and 
9b. 
 

a. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1480-14:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ACCEPTING NON-EXCLUSIVE 
ROADWAY EASEMENTS FOR THE EXTENSION OF MAIN STREET AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS.  

 
Councilmember Walter inquired where the money would be coming from and when the 
easements would take effect. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated the estimated cost of the 
project is $700,000.00 which was budgeted for in the current fiscal year.  The Main 
Street road extension is planned to be completed before July 1, 2015.  

 
Councilmember Walter inquired if the project needed to go out to bid and what is the 
budget account the funds will be allocated from. 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 5 of 22 
 
 

 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated the Main Street extension project will 
be completed by the Town’s Public Works Department.  The portion of the project that is 
on the State Highway will go out to bid and has an estimated cost of $200,000.  

 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, stated the monies would be coming out of the 
Capital Projects fund. 

 
b. *Authorization to donate the modular building that was the temporary Fire 
Department Station 2 to the City of Phoenix Fire Department. 
 

Councilmember Walter stated her concerns with donating the building, valued at 
$165,000, is that the Town will not receive any compensation.  She said her concerns 
include the addition of approximately 4300 more residents through the annexation; the 
extension of fire services; and the radio system for our Fire Department which is in need 
of improvements.  She asked if there were any negotiations for a trade or for the sale of 
the building.  

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk, stated that in 2007, Pulte, as part of the construction of 
Anthem, donated the modular to the Town for use as a Fire Station to service the area. 
At this time, Pulte would like to begin construction on the parcel that the modular 
currently sits on.  The Town has the option to either teardown the modular and place it 
in storage at the Town’s expense or donate it to another municipality that is in need of 
providing fire serve. 

 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff contacted all Councilmembers to make sure they wanted to 
donate the modular.  With the assurance to donate, staff placed a call-out on Arizona 
List Serve to see if any municipality would want the modular and had the funds available 
to relocate the modular and get the support of their Council.  The City of Phoenix was 
the first to secure funds and Council authorization.  When the Town of Florence is ready 
to utilize a modular again for a temporary station, the Town can approach the developer 
to donate the land and modular. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
approve Items 9a. and 9b. of the Consent Agenda, as written.   

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Canvas of the 2014 Primary Election and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of 
Resolution No. 1481-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1481-14 by 
title only.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 6 of 22 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
DECLARING AND ADOPTING THE RESULTS OF THE PRIMARY ELECTION HELD 
ON AUGUST 26, 2014.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated the Town of Florence held 
an election on August 26, 2014, with 1505 ballots cast, of which 1164 were mail-in 
ballots.  She said the mail-in ballots were verified with 12 ballots declared ineligible.   
She said there were 50 provisional ballots that were voted at the polls and 6 were 
ineligible.  The total votes cast per candidate were as follows: 
 

 Mr. Anderson  529 
 Mr. Buckley   570 
 Mr. Carlson   303 
 Mr. Gilbertson  607 
 Ms. Guilin   654 
 Mr. Villaverde  465  
 Ms. Woolridge  599 

 
Ms. Garcia stated that Ms. Guilin has been elected and will be sworn-in at the regular 
time with the other members of Council.  The candidates moving on to the November 4, 
2014 election are Mr. Anderson, Mr. Buckley, Mr. Gilbertson and Ms. Woolridge.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated Proposition 400 received 622 votes for the proposition and 667 votes 
against.  She said Proposition 400 was defeated.  
 
Mayor Rankin asked how many voters are registered in the Town of Florence and how 
many voted in this election. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated there are 4176 registered voters.  The 2014 Primary Election saw a 
36.04% voter turnout with 1505 votes cast.  She said this is lower than the turnout two 
years ago.  She said the 2010 Primary, which had the State ballot, had a 52% voter 
turnout, whereas the Mayoral Election for the General Election had a 47.3% voter 
turnout.  The Mayoral Elections historically experience the larger voter turnout.  She 
said the voter turnout in 2006 was 8%.  The 2010 election contained a ballot to elect 
three Councilmembers and the voter turnout was 33.43%.  She said historically, voter 
turnout is in the low to mid 30s with our turnout this year a bit above that average for 
this particular election. 
 
Councilmember Celaya asked if it is normal to have 300 ballots to not vote either way 
on the Home Rule Proposition. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that a non-vote is still considered a vote.  It is unknown why voters 
make the choice to not vote.  Statistically, this is normal. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 7 of 22 
 
 

Mayor Rankin asked if there was confusion on behalf of the voter having the proposition 
on the back side of the ballot. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated the Town no longer partakes in the education of election workers and 
will be working with Pinal County to ensure instruction is provided to all voters when 
picking up their ballots to turn it over when there are voting questions located on the 
backside.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated in the past, the ballot used to be non-partisan; however, with the 
Consolidated Election Bill, the Town is now required to have their elections at the same 
time as State and Federal. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated the Town has moved over to the fall election cycle and is required to 
be on the partisan primary and general ballots. 
 
Mayor Rankin asked if the Town needs to change its Statute which states that the Town 
will use an all-mail ballot to comply with the State. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Town has made the selection to do an all-mail ballot by 
motion, each election cycle, when elections were required to be pre-certified.  Elections 
are no longer required to be pre-certified.  She said Pinal County facilitates the Town’s 
elections and the Town no longer has to declare how it is going to do its elections.  
When the Town enters into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County, the 
Town can request an all-mail election; however, Pinal County has to authorize the Town 
to do so, and will have to forward the Intergovernmental Agreement to the Pinal County 
Board of Supervisors for approval.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that several municipalities in the Valley are challenging 
their process. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated there was a lawsuit in which charter cities challenged the legislation 
and it was declared that charter cities do not have to abide by the State rule.  Any town 
that is a general law city, which the Town of Florence is, must comply with the State 
rules. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated he felt voters are concentrating more on the State and 
Federal business and are not as involved in the Town election. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated she has noticed that since the Town is now on the fall election cycle 
there is less civic engagement as local organizations are no longer sponsoring 
candidate forums as they did in the past.   The forums would allow a greater amount of 
engagement with the voters and there was more communication on the topics to be 
voted on.  She said there are now fewer opportunities as those organizations are 
working on other political projects in the partisan arena.  This limits the Town’s 
opportunity to educate the citizens on voting and what each of the propositions mean. 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 8 of 22 
 
 

 
Mayor Rankin stated that he and Ms. Garcia met with Representative Michelle Ugenti, 
who is the main sponsor of the Consolidated Election Bill.  He said it is her belief that 
the bill will bring more voters out to participate in the elections.  Mayor Rankin stated 
that the Town will have to watch and see what happens in the general election with 
regards to voter turnout; and if necessary, connect with other cities that might have 
experienced a reduction in voter turnout based on this bill and address it at the next 
legislative session. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1481-14. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a design-build contract with Low 
Mountain Construction, establishing the Guaranteed Maximum Price of 
$12,991,719 for design development and construction of the Library/Recreation 
Complex. 
 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, thanked the Council for their patience and for 
allowing the delay on the project.  At this time, the design is in its final phase. Staff and 
Low Mountain Construction are in need of direction from Council. 
 
Mr. Brian Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated this Library/Recreation 
Complex Project consists of the library, which includes activity space, aquatic center, 
athletic fields and sports courts.  The staff and Low Mountain Construction Design-Build 
Team have been meeting weekly since mid-June to plan Territory Square.  He said 
three Open House meetings were held in July 2014.  On June 23, 2014, Council 
authorized staff to enter into agreement with Low Mountain Construction for schematic 
design and this phase has been completed.  
 
Mr. Hughes stated that staff is ready to move on to the design-build phase of the 
project.  Staff is requesting Council’s consideration in the design-build agreement with 
Low Mountain Construction, establishing the Guaranteed Maximum Price of 
$12,991,719.00 for the design, development, and construction of the Library/Recreation 
Complex.   
 
Mr. Hughes introduced the staff from Low Mountain Construction, Aaron Babcock from 
Hidell Architects and Jeff Swan, Project Manager.  
 
Mr. Aaron Babcock, Hidell Architects, stated the current project is part of the 40 acre 
Territory Square Master Plan.  He said they are looking to complete Phase 1, which 
consists of the Library/Recreation Facility located directly off Main Street.  Future 
phases of the Master Plan include development of a community facility, aquatic center, 
two soccer fields, two tennis courts, two pickle ball courts, ramada, parking, service 
road, retention basin and a plaza. The library/recreation building is approximately 
28,000 square feet and will contain the public library, shared common space, general 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 9 of 22 
 
 

governmental office, and Parks and Recreation offices.  The unique part of this design 
is the access of the common space from the various usage areas and the ability to flow 
between the spaces.   
 
Mr. Babcock stated the arrival plaza that leads into the bathhouse contains the women’s 
and men’s restrooms and changing areas along with offices and a multi-purpose room.  
The pool area has a beach front access with over-the-water shade, aquatic play unit 
and geysers with rain drop water feature.  The pool has a two-zone multi-purpose area 
that will provide for different skill level swim lessons to occur simultaneously.  There will 
also be two slides which will be a 32 foot speed slide and a 42 foot body slide.   He said 
separate from the leisure pool and slides will be a 25 yard, eight lane competition pool 
with a dive well and two one-meter diving boards.  
 
Mr. Babcock stated that two of the restrooms will have exterior access to them to allow 
those using the tennis courts or the soccer fields to utilize them.  There will also be an 
area for vendors to enter the aquatic facility. 
 
Mr. Brian Hughes acknowledged the members of the Library and Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Boards that were present in the audience.  He said joint meetings were held 
with both advisory boards in June, and they have forwarded their support and 
recommendation on the project. 
 
Mr. Don Pinson, Parks and Recreation Advisory Boardmember, stated his support of 
the project.  He said he understands that it is a controversial topic but feels the citizens 
of Florence need to join together to ensure the Town has the facilities it needs and can 
be proud of. 
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Chairperson of the Library Advisory Board, stated it is our civic duty 
to provide services to all members of our community.  She said libraries are more than 
books; they are meeting places, a fun environment for kids and adults which offer 
programs for all ages.  The library has been a planned part of Territory Square and the 
cornerstone of the project. The project will bring all areas of Florence together, 
developing a stronger sense of community.  She said she hopes the Council will vote in 
favor of the library/aquatic center project. 
 
Mr. Timothy Hess, Florence Resident, stated he has lived in Florence for 20 years and 
recently moved into the Anthem area and his choosing to stay in Florence was based 
on the amenities of the Town.  He said the Town was once known as a prison town and 
is now an outstanding community.  It would be a disservice to its youth by taking away 
the library and pool.  It is beyond our civic duty to provide a library and recreation center 
for our children to be safe and provide them a place to learn and grow.  He said there is 
no reason this project should not happen. 
 
Mr. Albert Dare, Tempe, Arizona, resident, stated that he does not understand why 
community members would want to allow those in Phoenix to tell our town how to spend 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 10 of 22 
 
 

our money with Home Rule.  He said he is in favor of the library/recreational project.  He 
is proud to be a member of the Town of Florence and the future it has. 
 
Ms. Betty Rieffer, Florence Resident, stated she is in favor of the library/recreation 
project.  The library system has been a strong and successful part of the community 
providing services and programs to all ages.  She expressed her appreciation to the 
Council for their efforts.   
 
Mayor Rankin asked Ms. Rieffer if she had served on the Library Board. 
 
Ms. Rieffer stated that she has not but has attended many of the Library Board 
meetings. She was on the Planning and Zoning Committee. 
 
Ms. Barbara Suttles, Florence Resident, is in support of the library and aquatic facility 
project.  She said the facilities will be safe and clean and will offer activities for everyone 
within the community. 
 
Mr. Charles Goldsmith, Florence Resident, stated he has lived in Florence all his life 
and has a passionate belief that the library/aquatic project needs to be built.  Many of 
the members of our community don’t have a facility of this nature and magnitude to use.  
He said this will encourage people to invest in our Town and be a part of our 
community.  He said the Town needs to show them that we are investing in it ourselves.  
We need to show that our Council is committed to the Town. 
 
Mr. John Anderson, Florence Resident, stated that he supports the library/aquatic 
project.  He said his concern is with the cost of the project.  He said that based on his 
financial analysis and research of the project, the anticipated operational costs for the 
two facilities is too low.  He would like staff to take more time to review the analysis and 
ensure the operating costs are appropriate and sustainable. 
 
Mr. Damon Anderson, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Chairman, stated that 
the Chamber unanimously supports seeing the library/aquatic center project moving 
forward.  The proposed project will provide a place for families throughout our region to 
visit and enjoy.  It will also give them a reason to possibly want to join our community.  
The water park will bring patrons to our town, infusing monies into our various business 
and services.  It will make Florence the family fun water park destination in the 
southeast valley. 
 
Ms. Alexandra Bruin, Florence Resident, stated that she is in favor of the library/aquatic 
facility but additionally feels the Town needs the soccer and sports fields.  She said that 
a water park and recreational facilities will provide the youth options of things to do in 
Town that they currently do not have.  She stated that the statistics indicate that when 
you have activities for the youth, they will not get involved in bad activity or make 
destructive decisions.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 11 of 22 
 
 

Ms. Amada Celaya, Florence Resident, stated that she purchased her first home five 
years ago in Florence because it had a Council.  She said friends recommended that 
she purchase in San Tan because it offered better home value options and amenities; 
however, they did not have a Council.  Ms. Celaya hopes that the Council will make her 
decision to invest in Florence a good one by building the recreation center. 
 
Mr. Bill Day, Florence Resident, stated that as a long-time homeowner and business 
owner in Florence, he counts on the Council to make well-informed decisions.  He 
encouraged all members of Florence to participate in all elections and make their vote 
count. He said that as a previous member of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, 
he is in favor of the library/aquatic center program.  As residents of Florence, the 
residents need to take responsibility for our Town and expand our resources.  He asked 
the Council to provide the facility that the residents need.   
 
Ms. Sandra Hamberg, Florence Resident, stated that she is in favor of the 
library/aquatic center project.  She said time is running out and Council must move 
forward now to get this project done before the Town does not have a pool or library at 
all. 
 
Mr. Wilbur Freeman, Florence Resident, stated he is in favor the library/aquatic center 
facility.  As a prior Mayor and a third generation Freeman living in Florence, he hopes to 
see the full plan come to fruition.  He said the Town has the three things it needs for the 
project; financing for the construction, operation of the facility, and most importantly, the 
community need.  He said the community wants and needs the amenities, but most 
important, they deserve it.  The project is not only for our citizens now, but for the future 
growth and development of this town. 
 
Ms. Vicki Kilvinger, Florence Resident and prior Mayor, stated that she remembers in 
the early 1990’s when Heritage Park was being built.  Funding ran out so everyone 
pitched in to complete it.  She said the Town is at the point now that it can fiscally 
support a new library/aquatic center.  She said she feels that many of our community 
members did not understand what Home Rule was.  She said she is favor of the project 
and believes the library/aquatic center is the right thing for the Town. 
 
Ms. Marsha Day, Florence resident and past Mayor, is in support of the library/aquatic 
center project.  She said recreation and the needs of the community have been placed 
on the back burner for too long.  The Town has the money and plans for the project, and 
needs to do what is right for the Town. 
 
Ms. Becky Guilin, Florence resident and Councilmember-elect, stated as a prior Finance 
Director, she knows that the Town has saved for these projects and will need to bond to 
fully fund them.  She said it won’t be easy and there will be some “belt tightening” with 
future budgets but the financial infrastructure is in place that will support the  
project term.  She said there are no amenities currently in the Town that will encourage 
development and growth.  Revenues generated from an aquatic center will benefit not 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 12 of 22 
 
 

only the Town, but the businesses as well.  She said our community members must 
travel out of town to utilize programs and activities that are not available near their 
homes. The facilities will keep our community members closer to home and they will 
spend their money locally.  The library/aquatic project will be good for the community. 
 
Mr. Chase Johnson, Florence resident, stated he would like to see this facility built as 
there is nothing to do in Florence.  He said that moving the pool and library out of the 
high school will provide more space for the school to expand.  
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that in his experience on Council, the need for a 
recreation facility has been a need for many years.  The proposed facility will be an 
anchor for the Town.  He said that the Home Rule does not have an effect on the 
construction of this project.  The cost to operate the aquatic center, in our financial 
analysis, is based on the hours of operation and shows the two facilities are 
sustainable.  There have been several meeting on this project and the citizens deserve 
it.  He agrees that the project needs to be done.   
 
Councilmember Walter asked how Home Rule will affect the Towns future budget. 
 
Mr. Mark Farina, Finance Director, stated the he estimates the State imposed limitation 
to be approximately $19 million.  He said the current budget is approximately $55 
million, not including the carry forwards.  He said that the Home Rule will have a large 
impact that will mostly affect capital projects in the various funds, including utilities. 
 
Councilmember Walter stated that she is in favor of having a library and pool facility in 
the core of Florence.  Her concern is if the Town can fiscally provide for the facility and 
support the services of the Town under Home Rule.  She said that it is unclear what 
services and projects will be cut to balance the budget that the Town will be required to 
operate under next fiscal year.  She inquired if the Town has identified how the 
necessary services will be provided for. 
 
Mr. Farina stated he has reviewed the projected operational expenditures and can 
confidently say the Town can move forward with that level of expenditures.  The Council 
will have options to streamline the budget without sacrificing current levels of operation 
and service while working within the proposed new budget parameters. 
Councilmember Walter explained that the plan has an estimated budget of $660,200.00 
for Parks and Recreation and noted that it is a 33% increase to the current budget.  Last 
year, the Parks and Recreation budget had a 19% increase. She said the actual 
increase to the budget is approximately 41.5%.  
 
Mr. Farina stated that he had not run those numbers at this time but knows that the 
increase will be 33% to the existing budget with is less than 5% of the General Fund 
Budget and less than 1% of the total town budget. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 13 of 22 
 
 

Councilmember Walter stated that she agreed with Ms. Bruin’s comments on the poor 
condition of the sport fields and inquired what the plan is for maintaining the fields at the 
new facility.   
 
Mr. Brian Hughes stated the maintenance management program for the ball fields has 
room for improvement.  The budget last year was appropriate for proper upkeep but he 
believes it was not utilized properly.  He said the maintenance management program for 
the sports fields will be appropriate and extended to the soccer fields. 
 
Councilmember Walter stated she did not see any funds earmarked for furniture and 
equipment. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated since there was not a final design/plan for the project, funds for 
furniture and equipment has not been allocated in the budget at this time. It is 
anticipated that a savings will be realized through the construction of the project.  He 
said that they are looking at possible funding to be re-allocated in the current budget. 
 
Councilmember Walter stated that when CAC built their campuses, the residents 
realized a 30% increase to the residents because they had not budgeted for furnishing 
and equipment.  She said her concern is that the budget may not allow for the level of 
service that the Town currently provides to be maintained to all of the residents, 
including those that were recently annexed.  She said the new annexed areas are 
known for a higher crime rate and she is concerned with the level of services that these 
areas will need is not reflected in the budget. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated his concern is with the 50% reduction in the upcoming 
budget based on the Home Rule.  He is in favor of the library/recreation center.  The 
project is more than just the library; it has additional offices and open space.  He said 
that perhaps the project can be modified to make it more affordable.  The anticipated 
operating costs for the project include the following:  library $384,000.00, aquatic center 
$382,000.00 and sports fields $47,000.00, which equates to $813,000 annually.   He 
said if the recreation center is added, consideration must be given to the projected 
operating cost of $419,000.00, which will equate to approximately $1.2 million in annual 
costs.  He noted that these expenses will increase with the cost of living and inflation.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that if the Home Rule had not been defeated, he 
believes the Town could have easily afforded these projects without cutting funds.  He 
would like to have another worksession to review the financial impact of the project in 
light of Home Rule to better understand the impacts to the upcoming budget.  He said 
that he was told that if the Town does not move forward with the library/aquatic center 
project, the Town would still be contractually obligated to pay the contractor the profit 
they would have realized if completed.  
 
Mr. James Mannato, Town Attorney, stated this was not correct. There is no contract in 
place that would require the payment of profit to Low Mountain Construction. The only 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 14 of 22 
 
 

contract the Town has entered into is the design of the project which is a little over 
$300,000.00. 
 
Mayor Rankin asked Mr. James Mannato, Town Attorney, based on the current 
process, is the Town obligated to move forward on this Project? 
 
Mr. Mannato said the Request for Proposal stated the Town has no obligation to move 
past the design phase and has no contractual obligation to move forward.  He said the 
procurement process does not obligate the Town to enter into contract for the design-
build phase of the project.    
 
Mr. Montoya stated the Town went out for RFP and RFQ and presented the Council 
with many iterations.  He said the contractor may be under a belief that since the Town 
has entered into a design contract with them there would be additional direction from 
Council to move forward into the building phase.  He said that the contractor may 
anticipate completing a portion of the project, if not all of the project in phases.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated the recreational center portion of the project increases 
the financial obligation of the project to approximately $18 million.  He is concerned that 
the project will place the Town in a fiscally irresponsible position under the limitations 
imposed for the upcoming budget.  The Town has always prided itself as being fiscally 
responsible and he is concerned about moving forward with the project because it could 
place the Town in the red. He said the Town Hall meetings with the public did not 
discuss options; they only presented what the project would be. He said the town is 
looking at doubling the library space and creating a competition style pool.  He said the 
Town needs to be prudent in their actions. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated in 1976 the Town eliminated the pool to build the 
library. Since then, the Town of Florence has not shown much growth with the exception 
an additional government building, and homes being built out and not filling in the open 
space.  He said in early 2000s, the gym that was provided by Earnest McFarland’s 
efforts, in the era of depression with the WPA burnt down.  The Town lost a gym and 
received a new gym.  He said the existing gym is now is 14 years old and is outdated. 
He said Heritage Park was built approximately 20 years ago. He inquired why the Town 
has to wait two generations to see positive growth.  The Town has been waiting 
approximately ten years for this project.  He said that this is our future and we need to 
anticipate the future needs of our Town, not our current needs.  He said that the Council 
needs to be forward thinking and build for the future. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge thanked for those who are in attendance of the meeting and 
have shown interest in the Town.  She said that Home Rule does not eliminate the 
funds we have, it limits access to them.  The Town will have to be creative with its 
budget to ensure adequate services are provided to our community.  She said that she 
feels some have used politics to sway voters in the community away from this project.  
She said inaccurate information has been disseminated, comparisons have been made 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 15 of 22 
 
 

to other communities that were not similar to what is being planned, and that erroneous 
information has created a division in our community.  She said the goal of this project is 
to provide a better quality of life to our residents.  She said if the building and 
operational costs were going to bankrupt the Town, the project would not be on the 
table for consideration of the Council.  The Town can discuss and complete this project 
because the Town has been fiscally responsible and conservative.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that this project will be beneficial to our new residents 
as well as the Town core.  She said it is her hope that our new residents will see the 
benefits of joining the Town, having access to top-notch fire and police services, and 
access to quality amenities.  She appreciates the support of those who have voted for 
her as well as those who desire to see her be re-elected. Some have suggested that 
she would compromise her desire to see this project be completed to obtain votes to be 
re-elected. She will not compromise doing what she feels is best for the Town of 
Florence.  
 
Vice-Mayor Smith thanked Councilmember Woolridge for her statements and for her 
doing what is right for the Town. He would like to make clear that the vote tonight is to 
set the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $12,991,719.00 for the design development and 
construction of the library/recreation complex. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith asked for confirmation that this does not include the recreation 
center. 
 
Mr. Montoya confirmed that the guaranteed maximum price does not include the 
recreation center.  He said it will be addressed under a separate agenda item on the 
current agenda.  
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated the additional portions of the Territory Square plan are 
estimated at a cost of approximately $5.56 million.  He thanked the Council and staff for 
their hard work and efforts regarding this project.  He said there may be a way to 
override Home Rule with a special election. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if a special election was an option to override Home 
Rule. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated the conversation was going off topic, and asked Mr. Mannato for 
clarification on the discussion.   
 
Mr. James Mannato, Town Attorney, stated the discussion of Home Rule is relevant to 
the current agenda item.  He said the discussion allows Council to function fully as it 
should in making important decisions.  The discussion on whether or not the Town 
should enter into contract with Low Mountain Construction certainly has within it the 
need to determine if the Town has the funds required to build and operate the project.  
Whether or not the Home Rule can be changed by holding another election is on the 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 16 of 22 
 
 

edge of relevance.  He said that the Council is trying forecast whether or not the 
restraints the voters have placed on the Council for next fiscal year can be changed or 
rectified.  He said the discussion includes the issue to hold a statutory election under 
the Alternative Expenditure Limitation Statues.  
 
Mayor Rankin clarified the Council can discuss the option to have a special election. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk, stated on October 6, 2014, the Council will have a work 
session at 5:00 pm. where Mr. Farina will explain how the loss of Home Rule will affect 
the Town and how much monies the Town will be allowed to utilize.  He will also explain 
the option to have a special election on the third Tuesday in May 2015.  She said the 
election will be an override election to spend on specific items.  She said Council can 
also choose to have a second override election in 2016.  The Arizona State Constitution 
states Home Rule must be placed on an election that has candidates.  A special 
election allows the Town to expend outside expenditure limitation held by the State. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated new residents will be able to take advantage of this project and 
participate in our election.  He said the project is a way to bring the community together.  
He said the personal property tax rate will not increase to support this project.  The 
Town is not in debt and is fiscally sound. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the $55 million budget amount includes Capital Improvement 
projects. 
 
Mr. Farina stated the amount does include all Capital Improvement Projects throughout 
the budget.  He said grant funds and HURF funds are exempt from state limitations. 
 
Mayor Ranked inquired what the budget total will be if the grants and HURF funds are 
removed from the total.  
 
Mr. Farina stated if the Capital Improvement Projects are eliminated from the budget 
then there would be a smaller range from zero to $3 million that would need to be 
reduced from the budget, but expressed that those are preliminary estimates. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired about the shared space being open and not under a roof. 
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, clarified that the shared space is an 
interior plaza that has a roof over it.  He said that it accounts for the common space for 
all entities to use and not to be placed directly in the library.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the project will need to be completed by the end of June 2014. 
 
Mr. Farina confirmed that any portion of the project not completed or paid for by the 
start of the next fiscal year will be subject to the Home Rule limitation. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 17 of 22 
 
 

Mayor Rankin stated he was proud to see the turnout this evening. He hopes to see this 
level of turnout at future meetings.  He feels the library/aquatic facilities will serve all age 
groups and should not affect the citizens financially. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated Anthem voted for Home Rule. The core of Florence and 
Florence Gardens voted down Home Rule. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walter, to table 
item 10b. until October 6, 2014. 
 
Roll Call: 
 
Councilmember Hawkins: Yes 
Councilmember Walter: Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge: No 
Councilmember Montaño:  No 
Councilmember Celaya:  No 
Vice-Mayor Smith:  No 
Mayor Rankin:  No 
 
Motion failed:  Yes: 2; No: 5 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to enter into a design-build contract with Low Mountain Construction, 
establishing the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $12,991,719 for design development 
and construction of the Library/Recreation Complex.   
 
Councilmember Walter requested to add to Option 1, which states impact fees and 
funds will be used for the projects and the Town does not need to go out for bonding.   
 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, stated the document states existing funding 
would be used. If Council desires, a document could be brought back to Council for 
additional monies for bonding. He said he would recommend that Council adopt a 
resolution, in the near future, to reimburse itself if there is a foreseeable issue and 
bonding needs to occur and that cash is needed for another purpose. This option would 
be available to this Council and future Councils. 
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if funds are currently available, without the need for 
bonding. 
 
Mr. Montoya confirmed there are funds available without the need for bonding. 
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if there is the ability to seek bonding, if needed at a 
later time. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 18 of 22 
 
 

Mr. Montoya stated that the the Council could go out for bonding if needed with the 
adoption of a resolution. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how bonds are used, the interest on the bonds, and the ease of 
selling the bonds.   
 
Mr. Mark Reeder, Bond specialist for the Town with Stifel, Nicolaus, and Co. Inc.,  
stated the bond market is at a very low rate, with approximately a 2- 3% interest range.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the interest rate is that the Town is earning on its funds.    
 
Mr. Farina stated the current interest being earned is 1.5% accumulated.  He said an 
analysis was done that compared the interest the Town would pay on a $5 million bond 
obligation versus the interest the Town would earn on $5 million in the bank.  The result 
is that the Town would earn more in interest with the money sitting in the bank verses 
paying the interest on the debt obligation like a bond. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that was his concern regarding spending the cash. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that is why he wanted to confirm that the Council had the 
ability to revisit bonding. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to enter into a design-build contract with Low Mountain Construction, 
establishing the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $12,991,719 for design development 
and construction of the Library/Recreation Complex.   
 
 
Roll Call: 
Councilmember Montaño:  Yes 
Councilmember Celaya:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge: Yes 
Councilmember Walter: No 
Councilmember Hawkins:  No 
Vice-Mayor Smith: Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes:  5; No: 2 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of authorizing staff to issue a request for 
qualifications and/or proposals for the proposed fitness and recreation center. 
 
Mr. Brian Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that at the July 31, 2104 Work 
session, Council requested to have staff look at the possibility of adding a fitness and 
recreation center to the project.  He said the cost for the fitness and recreation center to 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 19 of 22 
 
 

be added is approximately $5 and $10.5 million.  The varied cost is based on 
conversation with architects who recently worked on these types of projects and the 
amenities that could be included.  He said the operational costs are estimated at 
approximately $420,000 annually.  
 
Mr. Hughes stated that based on the procurement laws, the fitness and recreation 
center cannot be added to the existing library/aquatic center project.  The Town will 
need to put out a request for RFP/RFQ for the fitness and recreation center project. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Town has been discussing placing all recreational facilities 
in one location.  He said the project would be complete by added the fitness and 
recreation center.  He said the Town may only be able to build the buildings at this time, 
but believes it the right way to go. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated he cannot see building a building and leaving it empty. 
If the Town is going to build the centers, then the project should be completed 100 
percent.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated there is no harm going out for the RFQ as it will 
provide the information needed for the additional facilities and determine if they are 
fiscally prudent at this time. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins asked what the cost would be to issue a RFQ. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated the only cost to the Town is the time for staff to write the request. 
 
Councilmember Walter stated that the project for the library/aquatic center was never 
brought to an RFQ vote and appreciates that this portion of the project is being brought 
to a vote.  She said in her conversation with Mr. Montoya, he explained that because it 
was known that the pool and library would no longer be available to the community for 
public use, the Town staff moved forward with the RFQ without coming to Council. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that if the Town went out for bond on the library/aquatic 
centers, funds could be available for the centers.  He said there is also a possibility of 
moving funds around if Home Rule does not become an obstacle. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to authorize staff to issue a Request for Qualifications and/or Proposals for the 
proposed fitness and recreation center.  
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract with DBA 
Construction, Inc., for sidewalk and asphaltic concrete improvements on Willow 
and Central Streets, between Adamsville Road and the High School parking lot, in 
an amount not to exceed $274,346.41. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 20 of 22 
 
 

Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that the Town has identified Willow and 
Central streets as being main access ways for ingress and egress of pedestrians, as 
well as the need to provide traffic calming.  The action authorizes Town staff to 
complete the widening and rehabilitation project, utilizing the Alternate Bid 
Procedure/Cooperative Purchasing manual.  This will allow the Town to procure 
services under a contract awarded by another governmental entity if it is advantageous 
to the Town; in this case, the City of Peoria Contract No. ACON37511A. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that the project consist of four speed-humps that will be used to slow 
down traffic.  Two humps will be placed on Willow and two humps will be placed on 
Central Street.  A Request for Proposal was made to the winning bidder, DBA 
Construction.  He said allocation of funds will be from the rehabilitation and repair of 
roadways, Account Number 011-518-322 in the amount of $18,547.12 and sidewalk 
work within Account Number 011-518-318 in the amount of $145,798.99. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Celaya, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to enter into contract with DBA Construction, Inc., for sidewalk and asphaltic 
concrete improvements on Willow and Central Streets, between Adamsville Road and 
the High School parking lot, in an amount not to exceed $274,346.41. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract with Decorative 
Paving Solutions, LLC, for crosswalks and asphaltic concrete improvements on 
Main Street, between Ruggles and 12th Street, in an amount not to exceed 
$48,500. 
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that the streets identified are main 
access ways for ingress and egress for pedestrians as well as the need to provide high 
traffic visibility.  Transverse high visibility markings are used in addition to colored or 
textured pavement to legally establish a crosswalk location.  The use of transverse 
markings (bands) circumventing the crosswalks will allow for high visibility to occur with 
more reflectivity throughout the day and night.  The Federal Highway Administration 
concludes that high visibility crosswalks have a positive effect on pedestrian and driver 
behavior. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that the project will be piggy-backed with Contract No. 09PB039 that 
the Town of Scottsdale has with Decorative Paving Solutions, LLC. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to enter into a contract with Decorative Paving Solutions, LLC, for crosswalks 
and asphaltic concrete improvements on Main Street, between Ruggles and 12th Street, 
in an amount not to exceed $48,500.00. 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

There was no Manager’s Report. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 21 of 22 
 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, suggested that the public be included in the 
design of projects before the Town is spending additional funds to improve or correct 
them.  The public needs to be included early in the annual budgeting process as well.  
She agreed with Council that there needs to be more communication among elected 
officials, staff and the public.  Residents need to have more opportunities to take a 
constructive part in the direction the Town goes and the decisions that are made.  
 
Peter Koulouris, Mount Athos Restaurant, thanked the Council for having a vision for 
the Town.  He stated volunteers are available to help make sure this project comes to 
fruition.  He said the Town must work together focusing on the future of the children and 
the betterment for all citizens.   He understands the concerns regarding the budget and 
how Home Rule will affect the Town next fiscal year.  He said better education of the 
voters on Home Rule will provide better informed decision by our voting citizens.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Celaya recognized the members of the Town Boards and Commissions 
and their work with the Town. 
 
Councilmember Walter stated that the vote has occurred and together everyone needs 
to work together to move forward.  She said that she also cares about the children in the 
community, but wished the vote could have been delayed until October 6th to ensure 
the Town is moving forward in a fiscally responsible manner.  She requested that the 
Town Manager’s report be attached to the packet to allow for electronic distribution of 
the report to the public on the Town website. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he hopes there are no delays in the construction of 
the library and aquatic projects but wished the vote could have been delayed until the 
financial future of the Town could be properly understood and the Council could be 
prudent with their decision. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge expressed her condolence to Tom Madden’s family and 
stated he was an asset to the Community. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that Tom Madden volunteered and supported many 
organizations throughout the Town and will be missed. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that Mr. Madden was a friend to all and supports all that has been 
said on his behalf this evening. He stated that the buildings on Main Street are getting 
cleaned up and coming into Code. He thanked the Fire Department, especially the Fire 
Marshall for his assistance in bringing the buildings up to Code.  He said the goal is to 
make Main Street viable by bringing buildings back up to Code and getting them 
occupied.  He thanked the members of Council for their vote this evening as he believes 



Florence Town Council Meeting 
September 15, 2014  
Page 22 of 22 
 
 

the library and aquatic centers will put Florence back on the map and setting the pace 
for our future. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 9:28 pm. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on September 15, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



















































































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bryan Hughes 
                                     Parks & Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT: Library/Recreation Complex Project Update 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Library/Recreation Complex Project Update  Meeting Date: October 20, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Information Only 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 15, 2014, the Town Council approved a design-build contract with Low 
Mountain Construction, Inc. for the design and construction of the Library and 
Recreation Complex.  The Design-Build Team met the next day and continued where 
the project left off following the Schematic Design Phase. 
 
The current phase consists of design development and construction documents, which 
will conclude by November 15, 2014.  The construction phase will overlap and is 
tentatively scheduled to begin the week of November 3, 2014, and will continue for 240 
days. 
 
On Thursday, October 17, 2014, the Design-Build Team is scheduled to present the 
design review submittal to the Planning and Zoning Commission for consideration.  A 
copy of the presentation is attached.  The presentation shows building elevations, the 
overall site layout and the landscaping plans. 
 
A formal ground breaking for the project is scheduled for Thursday, October 30, 2014, 
at 4:00 p.m. at the site across from Town Hall.  Town staff, boards and commission 
members, special guests and the general public are all invited to participate in this 
important event. 
 
According to the latest construction timeline, the project is anticipated to be completed 
by July 2015. 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Library/Recreation Complex Project Update  Meeting Date: October 20, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Library/Activity Center, Aquatic Center and athletic fields and sport courts will cost 
$12,991,719 for design services and construction. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information Only 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Design Review submittal 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  
DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 
TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

Project Narrative 

• Site Plan – Phase I 
• Conceptual Master Plan 
• Landscape Plan 
• Conceptual Truck Circulation and ADA pedestrian circulation Diagram 
• Parking Layout and Calculations 
• Phasing Plan 
• Existing Zoning & Structures within 300’ of site
• Conceptual Grading Plan 

Site Plan 

• Library / Rec Building Elevations 
• Aquatic Center (Bath House) Elevations 
• Proposed Materials (Issued as 24x36 board) 

Elevations 

• Description of proposed project 
• Scope of Work Diagram 
• Vicinity Map (See this Page) 

VICINITY MAP TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Project Location 

1st Street 

M
ai

n 
S

tre
et

 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 
TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCOPE OF WORK DIAGRAM 
The project is a phase I development of a 40 Acre master plan located in the 
Territory Square Zoning District.   The phase I improvements include a public 
library, recreation program rooms, Park and Recreation Department offices, an 
outdoor aquatic complex, two soccer fields, two outdoor tennis courts, two 
outdoor pickle ball courts, and associated parking.   These improvements have 
been developed in conjunction with a 40 acre master plan, ensuring the overall 
sustainability of future developments.  

The Town of Florence has an immediate need to construct a public library, as the 
joint use partnership of the current facility is schedule to end May 2015.   This 
project will provide many necessary amenities to the Town of Florence core, 
including both indoor and outdoor recreational facilities, a public library, meeting 
space, and social gathering spaces.    

Located within the Town’s North End Framework Vision Plan, this facility will 
establish aesthetic criteria for the Territory Square Zoning District.   The 
proposed design includes an exterior plaza located at the corner of Main Street 
and 1st Street, which becomes the gateway to the 40 acre development.   The 
Library / Recreation facility is located to the north of this plaza on Main Street, 
extending the mercantile context found within the Town’s historic district.  The 
roof forms and materials are agrarian in nature, while modern in detail, 
envisioning the historic past of the Town within a modern framework.  The Bath 
House of the Aquatic facility repeats these agrarian forms and contextual 
materials.     

PROJECT NARRATIVE 

1. Library / Community Facility 
2. Aquatic Center 
3. Soccer Fields (2)
4. Tennis Courts (2) Pickle Ball (2) 
5. Parking 
6. Plaza 
7. Future Recreation Facility 
8. Remaining 40 Acre Master Plan 

KEY NOTES 

Phase I Limits 

Heritage Park 

M
ai

n 
S

tre
et

 

Existing 
Town Hall

8

1
5

2 7
3

4

6

1st Street 





TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

CONCEPTUAL MASTERPLAN 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

The conceptual master plan includes the future development 
of  both commercial and municipal facilities, a schematic 
layout of interior roadways , parking, and pedestrian flow.  
The framework of this master plan is the base for an final 
master plan that will include site grades, drainage, water 
distribution, wastewater collection systems, and a layout that 
addresses all on-site and off-site improvements required to 
support the facilities. 

MASTER PLAN 











DRAWING TITLE:  CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN SCALE:

TERRITORY SQUARE - LIBRARY / RECREATION COMPLEX
September 30, 2014

TOWN OF FLORENCE
1" = 100'

LEGEND



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

LIBRARY/REC FACILITY – SOUTH ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

WEATHERED STEEL 
CANOPY SYSTEM 

B.O. EAVE 
18’-0”B.O. EAVE 

18’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
31’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
33’-10”

T.O. EFIS  
20’-10”

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

GLAVANIZED STANDING 
SEAM METAL ROOF 

WEATHERED STEEL 
SCREEN WALL 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (BERKELEY) 

INSULATED GLASS IN 
ANODIAZED ALUMINUM 
WINDOW SYSTEM 

EIFS VENEER 
(MEDIUM TEXTURE ) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

LIBRARY/REC FACILITY – EAST ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

WEATHERED STEEL 
SCREEN WALL 

T.O. EIFS WALL 
20’-10”

T.O. RIDGE 
31’-0”

T.O. CLERESTORY 
33’-4”

GLAVANIZED STANDING 
SEAM METAL ROOF 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

CLEARSTORY GLASS 

EIFS VENEER 
(MEDIUM TEXTURE ) 

INSULATED GLASS IN ANODIAZED 
ALUMINUM WINDOW SYSTEM 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (BERKELEY) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

LIBRARY/REC FACILITY – NORTH ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

WEATHERED STEEL 
CANOPY SYSTEM 

T.O. EIFS WALL 
20’-10”

T.O. RIDGE 
31’-0”

EIFS VENEER 
(MEDIUM TEXTURE ) 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (BERKELEY) 

HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME 

INSULATED GLASS IN ANODIAZED 
ALUMINUM WINDOW SYSTEM WEATHERED STEEL BUILDING SIGNAGE 

(sign to be submitted for review under separate 
cover) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

LIBRARY/REC FACILITY – NORTH WEST ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

WEATHERED STEEL 
CANOPY SYSTEM 

T.O. BLOCK 
22’-0”

T.O. CLERESTORY 
26’-0”

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

WEATHERED STEEL BUILDING SIGNAGE 
(sign to be submitted for review under separate 
cover) 

CLERESTORY GLASS 

WEATHERED STEEL 
SUN SCREEN MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 

ROCK FACE (BERKELEY) 

INSULATED GLASS IN 
ANODIAZED ALUMINUM 
WINDOW SYSTEM 

EIFS VENEER 
(MEDIUM TEXTURE ) 

EIFS VENEER 
(MEDIUM TEXTURE ) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

LIBRARY/REC FACILITY – SOUTH WEST ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

INSULATED GLASS IN 
ANODIAZED ALUMINUM 
WINDOW SYSTEM 

B.O. EAVE 
18’-0”

T.O. EIFS WALL 
22’-10”

T.O. RIDGE 
31’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
31’-0”

EIFS VENEER 
(MEDIUM TEXTURE ) 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

GLAVANIZED STANDING 
SEAM METAL ROOF 

WEATHERED STEEL 
SUN SCREEN MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 

GROUND FACE (BERKELEY) 

WEATHERED STEEL 
CANOPY SYSTEM 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

LIBRARY/REC FACILITY – AERIAL VIEW 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

PARAPET HEIGHT AT PERIMETER SHALL 
SCREEN MECHANICAL UNIT FROM VIEW 

MECHANICAL UNIT 
LOCATION (TYPICAL) 

LIGHT MONITOR WITH NORTH FACING GLASS.   
(ELEMENT WILL PROVIDE NATURAL LIGHT TO INTERIOR OF 
BUILDING) (TYPICAL OF 3)  MECHANICAL UNIT 

LOCATION (TYPICAL) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

AQUATICS FACILITY (BATH HOUSE)  – NORTH  ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

B.O. EAVE 
14’-0”

T.O. CLERESTORY 
22’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
25’-0”

T.O. BLOCK 
14’-0”

CLERESTORY GLASS 

GLAVANIZED STANDING 
SEAM METAL ROOF 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (BERKELEY) 

WEATHERED STEEL METAL PANELS

WEATHERED STEEL BUILDING SIGNAGE 
(sign to be submitted for review under separate 
cover) 

WEATHERED STEEL ENTRY GATES

HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

AQUATICS FACILITY (BATH HOUSE)  – EAST  ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
ROCK FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

T.O. BLOCK 
14’-0”

T.O. BLOCK 
14’-0”

T.O. CLERESTORY 
22’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
25’-0”

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

GLAVANIZED STANDING 
SEAM METAL ROOF 

WEATHERED STEEL 
SUN SCREEN 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (BERKELEY) 

CLERESTORY GLASS 

WEATHERED STEEL 
METAL PANELS

WEATHERED STEEL 
ENTRY GATES

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
ROCK FACE (MOJAVE 
BROWN) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

AQUATICS FACILITY (BATH HOUSE)  – SOUTH  ELEVATION (POOL SIDE) 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

WEATHERED STEEL BEAM 

T.O. BLOCK 
14’-0”

T.O. BLOCK 
14’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
25’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
25’-0”

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

GLAVANIZED STANDING 
SEAM METAL ROOF 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
GROUND FACE (BERKELEY) 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
ROCK FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
ROCK FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

AQUATICS FACILITY (BATH HOUSE)  – WEST  ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

T.O. BLOCK 
14’-0”B.O. BEAM 

9’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
25’-0”

T.O. RIDGE 
25-0”

GLAVANIZED STANDING 
SEAM METAL ROOF 

OVERHEAD 
COILING DOOR 

T.O. BLOCK 
14’-0”

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
ROCK FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

WEATHERED STEEL BEAM 

WEATHERED STEEL 
ENTRY GATES

MEGASTONE CMU BLOCK 
ROCK FACE (MOJAVE BROWN) 

INSULATED GLASS IN 
ANODIAZED ALUMINUM 
WINDOW SYSTEM 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 

September 30, 2014 

AQUATICS FACILITY (BATH HOUSE)  – AERIAL VIEW  ELEVATION 

TERRITORY SQUARE – LIBRARY /RECREATION COMPLEX  

SCALE : NTS 

PARAPET HEIGHT SHALL 
SCREEN MECHANICAL UNIT 
FROM VIEW 

MECHANICAL UNIT LOCATION 

PARAPET HEIGHT SHALL 
SCREEN MECHANICAL UNIT 
FROM VIEW 

MECHANICAL UNIT LOCATION 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9a.  

MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Planning and  Zoning Commission Resignation 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Jeff Wooley Resignation from PZ Commission                        Meeting Date: October 20, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the resignation of Jeff D. Wooley from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In response to the letter of resignation for Jeff  D. Wooley from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, action is recommended to accept Mr. Wooley’s resignation and to fill his 
vacated position. 
 
With Mr. Wooley’s departure from the Planning and Zoning Commission due to personal 
reasons, that leaves the following active members on the Commission: 
 
Vice Chairman Larry Putrick  (term expiring 12/31/15) 
 
James Petty     (term expiring 12/31/15) 
 
Billie Jo Garcia    (term expiring 12/31/14) 
 
Gary Pranzo     (term expiring 12/31/15) 
 
Currently, the Town of Florence has no alternate members available for the position of 
Planning and Zoning Commissioner. The Town is actively recruiting to fill one vacant 
seat on the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
Staff appreciates the service Mr. Wooley has offered to the Town and the perspective 
he added to the Commission as residents of the Florence community. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact with this request. 



Subject:  Jeff Wooley Resignation from PZ Commission                        Meeting Date: October 20, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the resignation of Jeff  D. Wooley from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission be accepted. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
Mr. Wooley’s resignation letter  





 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9b. 

MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Wayne J. Costa, P.E.,  
                                     Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval to award a Contract to R.K.  
                     Sanders, Inc. for Improvements to Diversion 
                     Dam Road 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  R.K. Sanders Inc. for Diversion Dam Project            Meeting Date:  October 20, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to award a Contract with R.K. Sanders for improvements to Diversion 
Dam Road including widening, road construction, curb/gutter, storm drainage and 
street lighting in an amount not-to-exceed $1,021,985.10.   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The HURF Capital Improvement provides for the reconstruction of Diversion Dam 
Road to a major collector and providing intersection improvements onto State 
Highway 79.  The intersection improvements (westbound) will consist of two left 
turn lanes onto southbound State Highway 79 and one dedicated right turn lane 
onto northbound State Highway 79.  These improvements will reduce traffic 
congestion at peak hours.  A coincidental ADOT project provides signalization to 
allow entry onto State Highway 79 while having a pre-emptive signal on 1st Street 
for emergency vehicles.  Eastbound traffic will be two lanes for approximately 
300 feet.  Both projects require final utility clearance from San Carlos Irrigation 
District and finalization of one easement.  

The purpose of the project is to reduce traffic congestion, accommodate 
business accesses safely, and account for an increase in traffic volumes; thus, 
negating traffic delays and inability for vehicular movement with the Diversion 
Dam corridor to Bowling Road. 

The project was advertised and bids were opened on October 2, 2014.  Four bids 
were received; therefore, R.K. Sanders became the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder.  The amount of the bid submitted by R.K. Sanders is 
$1.021.985.10. 

 



Subject:  R.K. Sanders Inc. for Diversion Dam Project            Meeting Date:  October 20, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The current fiscal year budget provides for funding of the first $1,250,000; 
identified as CIP project T-17 and funded in Account No. 012-566-507. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the award of a contract to R.K. Sanders, Inc. for Diversion 
Dam Road-Street Improvements Project, in an amount not to exceed 
$1,021,985.10. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 
R.K. Sanders Bid Schedule 

 
 













 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9c.  

MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:    Silver King Marketplace Lease Agreement with  
                      the Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene   
                      (Florence Fudge Company) for Suite 102 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement                                                   Meeting Date: October 20, 2014 
with Mosaic Church of the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Co.)  
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
A motion to approve the lease agreement between the Town of Florence and the 
Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Company) for the Silver King 
Marketplace, Suite 102. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Company) seeks to lease 
Suite 102, the 1,424 square feet space located on the ground floor of the Silver King 
Marketplace. The lease also includes space in the carriage house the Florence Fudge 
Company uses for storage. The Florence Fudge Company currently occupies Suite 101 
in the Silver King Marketplace.   
 
Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene purchased Generations of Fudge from Door 
County Fudge Company, LLC, in February 2010 after the business had been open for 
approximately one year. The church has successfully managed the Florence Fudge 
Company at its current location since that time and now they would like to move from 
Suite 101 to Suite 102 so they can expand their operation. The Florence Fudge 
Company focuses on providing fast, quality lunches and fudge. Their plans include 
expanding the menu by adding coffee drinks and a dinner menu on Friday nights. They 
plan to be open during special events at Padilla Park and expand their catering services 
to accommodate larger events.   
 
There has been discussion about whether or not Florence Mosaic Church should remit 
Transaction Privilege Tax on the revenue generated through sales at the Florence 
Fudge Company. While the Arizona Department of Revenue may choose to exempt 
some non-profit organizations from collecting state Transaction Privilege Tax, 
municipalities have a separate tax structure and may choose to collect Transaction 
Privilege Tax.  The Town Attorney’s office has determined that Florence Mosaic Church  



Subject: Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement                                                   Meeting Date: October 20, 2014 
with Mosaic Church of the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Co.)  
Page 2 of 2 

is required to remit Transaction Privilege Tax to the Town of Florence on income 
generated from retail sales unrelated to their exempt purpose. The current Transaction 
Privilege Tax rate for Florence is 2% of gross sales. Florence Mosaic Church has 
indicated they will collect and remit Town of Florence Transaction Privilege Tax on sales 
made at the Florence Fudge Company.  
 
The proposed use of Suite 102 as a restaurant conforms to existing Downtown 
Commercial (DC) zoning and adheres to the Silver King Marketplace Lease Policy. The 
Florence Fudge Company has demonstrated that its operation promotes foot traffic at 
the Silver King Marketplace in keeping with the leasing policy.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The term of the lease is from January 1, 2015 to December  31, 2015.  The monthly rent 
will be $356.00 and the tenant will pay the Town $868.64 per month for utilities. The 
utility payment may be adjusted twice a year to better reflect the total cost. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the lease with Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene 
(Florence Fudge Company).  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement 



Page 1 of 16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 

 
AND 

 
Mosaic Church of the Nazarene 

an Arizona non-profit corporation 
 

(Florence Fudge Company) 
 
 
 

DATE:  January 1, 2015 
 



Page 2 of 16 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This Commercial Lease Agreement ("Lease") is made and entered into on the 1st day of January, 
2015 by Town of Florence, Arizona, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "Landlord" and 
Mosaic Church of the Nazarene, an Arizona non-profit corporation, hereinafter called “Tenant". 
 
1. LEASED PREMISES 
 
A. For and in consideration of the rent to be paid and of the covenants and agreements of the 
Tenant as hereinafter set forth, Landlord does hereby lease 1,424 square feet to Tenant of the 
premises located at 440 N. Main Street, Suite 102, Florence, Arizona, also known as the Silver 
King Market Place, and hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”, or, the “Leased Premises”. The 
Leased Premises are also described as Suite 102, which is located at the north end of the 
Premises on the first floor. 
 
B. Tenant shall also have access to the central unit of the Carriage House, adjacent to the 
Premises.  This unit is leased to Tenant in as-is condition; Tenant understands and agrees that the 
Landlord will not provide any interior improvements or maintenance services for this space. 
Further, the Landlord will provide only such exterior maintenance on the general structure of the 
Carriage House as to maintain the integrity of the overall structure. Tenant may only use the 
central unit of the Carriage House for storage. Any other use must be approved by Landlord. All 
provisions of this Lease which apply to the Leased Premises as defined above shall also apply to 
Tenant’s use and occupancy of the Carriage House, unless such provisions are in conflict with 
the express terms of this paragraph 1(B), in which case this sub-paragraph shall be controlling. 
 
Tenant understands and agrees that utilities shall not be provided to the Carriage House under the 
current allowable occupancy of “U” (Utility). Further, electrical service shall not be supplied 
with generators, extension cords or other generating or transmission systems. Tenant shall not 
store flammable substances in the Carriage House. 
 
2. TERM 
The Lease term shall begin on the 1st day of January, 2015, and end on the 31st day of 
December, 2015 (the “Initial Term”). Landlord shall use its best efforts to put Tenant in 
possession of the Leased Premises at the beginning of the Initial Term. If Landlord is unable to 
timely provide the Leased Premises for occupancy by Tenant, rent shall abate for the period of 
delay. Tenant agrees it shall make no other claim against Landlord for any such delay. 
 
3. EXTENSIONS  
 
The parties hereto may elect to extend the Initial Term upon such terms and conditions as may be 
agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at the time of any such election, provided that 
Tenant gives notice of its request to extend the Initial Term no later than sixty (60) days prior to 
the expiration of the Initial Term. If Tenant does not elect to extend the Initial Term in 
accordance with this paragraph, this Lease shall end on the 31st day of December, 2015 (the 
“Expiration Date”) and thereafter Tenant may only occupy the Premises on a month-to-month 
basis. Such month-to-month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice 



Page 3 of 16 

to Tenant. Landlord’s acceptance of rent payments after the Expiration Date shall not constitute a 
renewal of this Lease Agreement.  
 
4. RENTS 
 
Rent shall be paid at the rate of three hundred fifty six dollars ($356.00) per month for the 
duration of the lease. In addition to the rent, the tenant is responsible for their portion of the 
commercial property lease transaction privilege tax and government property lease excise tax. 
Each monthly payment of rent due thereafter shall be payable on the first day of each calendar 
month for the balance of the Initial Term. Payment of rent shall be made to Landlord at Town of 
Florence, P.O. Box 2670, 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132, or at such other place 
designated by written notice from Landlord. The rental payment amount for any partial calendar 
months included in the lease term shall be prorated on a daily basis. If rent is not received by the 
close of the 5th business day then the late fee of $25.00 will be added to the Tenant’s account. 
 
5. SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
The Tenant has deposited with the Landlord the sum of five hundred dollars ($500.00) as 
security for the full and faithful performance by the Tenant of all the terms of this lease required 
to be performed by the Tenant. Such sum shall be returned to the Tenant after the expiration of 
this lease, provided the Tenant has fully and faithfully carried out all of its terms. At the 
expiration of this Lease or such other time as Tenant may request the return of the Security 
Deposit, Landlord shall make an inspection of the Leased Premises and deduct from the Security 
Deposit such sums as are necessary to repair and refurbish the Leased Premises to the condition 
which existed prior to Tenant’s occupancy thereof. In the event of a bona fide sale of the 
property of which the Leased Premises are a part, the Landlord shall have the right to transfer the 
security to the purchaser to be held under the terms of this lease, and the Landlord shall be 
released from all liability for the return of such security to the Tenant.  
 
6. PURPOSE 
 
A. The Landlord is maintaining the Silver King Market Place for the development of new 
businesses within the Downtown area of the Town of Florence. It is the Landlord’s desire to help 
in the creation of successful businesses by providing the necessary environment to help 
businesses survive. 
 
B. Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the purpose of conducting the business of the 
“Florence Fudge Company”. This use must also be and remain consistent with Exhibit “A”. In 
the event Tenant desires to use the Leased Premises for a different business purpose not 
described above, Tenant shall first apply, in writing, for approval for such use to the Town of 
Florence and the Redevelopment Commission. As a further condition of the lease, Tenant must 
also maintain regular business hours and be open for at least thirty five (35) hours per week with 
exception of holidays.  When business enhancement classes are offered, free of charge, the 
Tenant shall make every effort to attend these programs. 
 



Page 4 of 16 

C. If Tenant fails to meet any of these requirements, then Landlord may terminate the lease 
after providing the Tenant no less than thirty (30) days written notice of Landlord’s intent to 
terminate the lease. If Tenant does not satisfy the above conditions or otherwise cure the 
deficiencies indicated in the notice within thirty (30) days, Landlord may terminate the lease as 
provided in section 17 below. 
 
The Premises shall not be used in violation of this Lease, any zoning laws applicable to the 
Premises, or in violation of any federal, state or local laws or regulations. 
 
7. PROHIBITED USES 
 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Tenant shall not use the Leased Premises for the purposes of 
storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables or other inherently dangerous 
substance, chemical, thing or device. All uses must conform to the zoning code of the Town of 
Florence and the Silver King Market Place Reuse and Leasing Policy.   
 
8. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. Tenant shall not sublet or assign the lease without Landlord's consent. To assign this 
Lease to a business with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any subsidiary of Tenant, to 
any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to a purchaser of substantially all of 
Tenant's assets the Tenant must receive either written consent from the Landlord or enter into a 
new lease agreement.  
 
B. Except as set forth above, neither Tenant nor any assignee may sublease all or any part of 
the Leased Premises, or assign this Lease in whole or in part without Landlord's written consent.  
 
9. REPAIRS 
 
During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary repairs and 
refurbishment of the Leased Premises. Repair and refurbishment shall include, but is not limited 
to, the repair and refurbishment of normal wear and tear to floors, walls, ceilings, and other parts 
of the Leased Premises caused by Tenant’s use and enjoyment of the Leased Premises, except for 
major mechanical systems or the roof, subject to the obligations of the parties as may otherwise 
be set forth in this Lease. 
 
10. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS  
 
A. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right to remodel, redecorate, or make 
additions, improvements and replacements to all or any part of the Leased Premises from time to 
time as Tenant may deem desirable (the “Tenant Modifications”), provided the same are made in 
a workmanlike manner and utilizing good quality materials. Tenant must obtain the written 
consent of Landlord prior to undertaking any such Tenant Modifications. Tenant shall have the 
right to place and install personal property, trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary 
installations in and upon the Leased Premises, and fasten the same to the premises. All personal 
property, equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary installations, whether acquired by 



Page 5 of 16 

Tenant at the commencement of the Lease term or placed or installed on the Leased Premises by 
Tenant thereafter, shall remain Tenant's property free and clear of any claim by Landlord. Tenant 
shall have the right to remove the same at any time during the term of this Lease but not after the 
expiration thereof, provided that such removal does not cause any damage to the Premises. Any 
damage caused by the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be repaired by Tenant at 
Tenant's expense. If Tenant fails to repair any such damage Landlord may repair the damage and 
deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security deposit. 
 
B. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of the Tenant 
Modifications, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and 
incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall obtain all certificates, permits, licenses and other 
authorizations of governmental bodies or authorities which are necessary to permit the 
construction of the improvements on the Leased Premises and shall keep the same in full force 
and effect at Tenant's cost.  
 
C. Tenant shall negotiate, let and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of services, labor, 
and materials for the construction of the Tenant Modifications on the Leased Premises at its sole 
cost and expense. All such contracts shall require the contracting party to guarantee performance 
and all workmanship and materials installed by it for a period of one year following the date of 
completion of construction.  Tenant shall cause all contracts to be fully and completely 
performed in a good and workmanlike manner, all to the effect that the improvements shall be 
fully and completely constructed and installed in accordance with good engineering and 
construction practice. Tenant shall include in any contract for the construction of Tenant 
Modifications a requirement that bonds in the full amount of the contract sum be furnished 
guaranteeing the faithful performance of the contract requirements and the payment of any and 
all subcontractors. 
 
D. During the course of the Tenant Modifications, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in full force 
and effect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum equal to three times the 
amount expended for construction of the improvements. All risk of loss or damage to the 
improvements during the course of construction shall be on Tenant with the proceeds from 
insurance thereon payable to Landlord.  
 
E. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully and 
completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of the Tenant Modifications 
to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs associated therewith. Landlord shall be under 
no duty to investigate or verify Tenant's compliance with the provisions contained herein. 
Moreover, neither Tenant nor any third party may construe the permission granted Tenant 
hereunder to create any responsibility on the part of the Landlord to pay for any improvements, 
alterations or repairs occasioned by the Tenant.  
 
11. UTILITIES 
 
The Leased Premises are not separately metered, therefore, Landlord shall pay the amount due 
for charges for water, sewer, gas, electricity and separately invoice Tenant for Tenant's pro rata 
share of the charges. Tenant shall pay eight hundred sixty eight dollars, sixty four cents 



Page 6 of 16 

($868.64) upon the due date for the monthly payment of the lease or the first of the month, which 
ever comes first. The Landlord from time to time, may adjust the above amount to accurately 
reflect the utilities being consumed but may not adjust the amount more than two (2) times per 
year. Tenant acknowledges that the Leased Premises are designed to provide standard office or 
retail use electrical facilities and standard office lighting. Tenant shall not use any equipment or 
devices that utilize excessive electrical energy or which may, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, 
overload the wiring or interfere with electrical services to other tenants.  
 
12. SIGNAGE 
 
A. Exterior Signs.  Landlord will provide one exterior sign located on the east side of the 
building. Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity with 
applicable laws and ordinances, to erect and thereafter, to repair or replace, if it shall so elect, 
signs on any portion of the Leased Premises, providing that Tenant shall remove any such signs 
upon termination of this lease, and repair all damage occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises 
at its sole cost and expense. 
 
B. Interior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity 
with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect, maintain, place and install its usual and customary 
signs and fixtures in the interior of the Leased Premises.  
 
13. ENTRY 
 
Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable hours to inspect 
the same, provided Landlord shall not thereby unreasonably interfere with Tenant's business on 
the Leased Premises. 
 
14.  PARKING 
During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the non-exclusive use in common with 
Landlord, other tenants of the Building, their guests and invitees, of the non-reserved common 
automobile parking areas, driveways, and footways, subject to rules and regulations for the use 
thereof as prescribed from time to time by Landlord. Landlord reserves the right to designate 
parking areas within the Building or in reasonable proximity thereto, for Tenant and Tenant's 
agents and employees. 
 
15. MECHANIC’S LIENS 
 
Tenant shall pay before delinquent all sums of money which, if unpaid, would entitle any person 
to a mechanic’s or material man’s or laborer’s lien against the Leased Premises, or on Lessee’s 
interest under this Lease. Tenant agrees that it will neither do any act, nor fail to do any act, 
which would result in the recordation of any lien against the Leased Premises or the Silver King 
Market Place as a whole. 
 
16.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. INDEMNIFICATION 



Page 7 of 16 

 
(i) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the Town of Florence, its agents, officers, officials and employees from and against all tort 
claims, damages, losses and expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and 
the cost of appellate proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted either 
wholly or in part from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Tenant, its 
agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or expenses are caused in part by 
Landlord.  
 
(ii) Tenant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town of Florence, its agents, 
officers, officials and employees shall arise in connection with any tort claims, damages, losses 
or expenses that are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, 
impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, caused either 
wholly or in part by Tenant’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in the 
performance of this Agreement including any employee of the Tenant or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services the Tenant may be legally liable, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, losses or expenses are caused in part by 
Landlord. 
 
(iii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in no way 
be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph. 
 
B. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
(i) The Tenant, at Tenant’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein stipulated 
minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of 
“A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms 
satisfactory to the Landlord/Town of Florence. 
 
(ii) All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during any term 
of this Lease; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town of Florence, constitute a 
material breach of this Lease. 
 
(iii) The Tenant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Town of Florence shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to comply with the 
claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an insurance policy warranty shall not 
affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the Town of Florence. 
 
(iv) The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town of Florence, its 
agents, officers, officials, and employees as Additional Insured. 
 
C. REQUIRED COVERAGES 
 
(i) General Liability 
 



Page 8 of 16 

(a) Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, maintain a policy of comprehensive  public  liability 
insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 
General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form 
property damage, personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, 
the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which coverage 
will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc. Policy Form CG 000211093(October 
2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, U. 
 
(b)  Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain a 
sunset provision or commutation clause, nor any provision, which would serve to limit third 
party action over claims. 
 
(c) The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least as 
broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 
(October 2001 version). 
 
(ii) Property Insurance 
 
(a) Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or policies 
of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, in the amount of the full 
replacement value thereof, providing protection against all perils included within the 
classification of fire, flood, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and special 
extended perils. 
 
(b) Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or policies 
of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of the Leased premises. Tenant agrees that 
Landlord shall not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any loss of income there from, or 
for loss or damage to goods, wares, merchandise or other property in or on the Leased premises 
owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s employees, invitees, customers, or any other person in 
or about the Leased Premises; nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, 
Tenant’s employees, agents or contractors, whether such damage or injury to persons or property 
is caused by or results from fire, steam, electricity,  gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, 
leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air 
conditioning, or light fixtures or from any other cause; or whether the said damage or injury to 
person or property results from conditions arising upon the Leased Premises or from other 
sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of 
repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant. 
 
(iii) Certificates of Insurance 
 
(a) Prior to delivery of possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant shall furnish the 
Landlord/Town of Florence with Certificates of Insurance, or formal endorsements as required 
by this Lease, issued by Tenant’s insurer(s), as evidence that policies providing the required 
coverage, conditions and limits required by this Lease are in full force and effect. 
 
(b) In the event any insurance policy (ies) required by this Lease is (are) written on a “claims 



Page 9 of 16 

made" basis, coverage shall extend for two years past the expiration of any term of this Lease as 
evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance. 
 
(c) If a policy does expire during any term of this Lease, a renewal certificate must be sent to 
the Town of Florence fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
17. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 
A. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material 
default and breach of this Lease by Tenant: 
 
(i) The vacating or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure by Tenant to make any payment of rent or any other payment required to be 
made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due; 
 
(iii) The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, other than described in 
subsection (A) above, where such failure shall continue for a period of fifteen (15) days after 
written notice hereof from Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature of Tenant’s 
default is such that more than fifteen (15) days are reasonably required for its cure, then Tenant 
shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such cure within said fifteen (15) day 
period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to completion. 
 
(iv) The making by Tenant of any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; the filing 
by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt or a petition for 
reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a 
petition filed against Tenant, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); the appointment of a 
trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Tenants’ assets, located at the Leased 
Premises, or, of Tenant’s interest in this Lease, where possession is not restored to Tenant within 
thirty (30) days; or, the attachment, execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of 
Tenants’ assets located at the Leased Premises or of Tenants’ interest in this Lease where such 
seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 
 
(v)  The filing or recordation of a lien against the Leased Premises or the Silver King Market 
Place as a whole due to any action or inaction of Tenant. 
 
B.  REMEDIES 
 
(i) In the event of any such material default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at any time 
thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the exercise of any 
right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason of such default or breach: 
 



Page 10 of 16 

(ii) Terminate Tenants’ right to possession of the Leased Premises by any lawful means in 
which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall immediately surrender possession of the 
Leased Premises to Landlord. In such event Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenants 
all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenants’ default, including but not limited to, the 
cost or recovering possession of the Premises; expenses of reletting, including necessary 
renovation and alteration of the Premises; reasonable attorney’s fees; and any real estate 
commission actually paid; the worth at the time of award by the court having jurisdiction thereof 
of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the balance of the term after the time of such award 
exceeds the amount of such rental loss for the same period that Tenant provides could be 
reasonably avoided. In the event Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises, Landlord shall have 
the option of 1) retaking possession of the Premises and recovering from Tenant the amount 
specified in this paragraph, or 2) proceeding under subsection 18 below. 
 
(iii) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession in which case this Lease shall remain in effect 
whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event, Landlord shall be 
entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and remedies under this Lease, including the right to 
recover the rent as it becomes due hereunder. 
 
(iv) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord under the laws or 
judicial decisions of the State of Arizona, including the right to declare a landlord’s lien on 
Tenant’s personal property located on the Leased Premises. Where a landlord’s lien is declared 
by Landlord, Landlord may, without notice or demand to Tenants, terminate Tenant’s right to 
possession of the premises until Landlord has secured sufficient personal property or full 
payment of rent to satisfy the amount of rent owed. Should Landlord declare a landlord’s lien on 
the Leased Premises pursuant to this paragraph, the Lease shall not be considered terminated, 
and Landlord shall have a right to recover rent as it becomes due. 
 
C. DEFAULT BY LANDLORD 
 
(i) Landlord shall not be in default unless Landlord fails to perform obligations required of 
Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after written notice 
by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder of any first mortgage or deed of trust covering the 
Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore been furnished to Tenant in writing, 
specifying wherein Landlord has failed to perform such obligations; provided however, that if 
the nature of Landlord’s obligation is such that more than fifteen (15) days are required for 
performance, then Landlord shall not be in default if Landlord commences performance within 
such thirty day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion. If Landlord 
does not perform, the holder of any first mortgage may perform in Landlord’s place and Tenant 
must accept such performance. 
 
D. HOLDOVER BY TENANT 
 
(i) If Lessee shall hold over after expiration of the Initial Term, or any extension of the 
Initial Term, such tenancy shall be from month-to-month only upon such terms, covenants, and 
conditions as set forth herein except for those relating to the term of the Lease. Any such month-
to-month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. 



Page 11 of 16 

However, nothing herein shall be construed as or deemed a waiver of any rights of Landlord to 
take such action in law or equity as Landlord may have under the provisions of this Lease or 
otherwise.  
 
E. BANKRUPTCY OF TENANT 
 
(i) If Lessee should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or permit a receiver to 
be appointed to take possession of a substantial portion of the Lessees’ assets or of this 
leasehold, and such bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership proceedings not be dismissed within 
thirty days, then Lessor may, without notice or demand, terminate this Lease and forthwith re-
enter and repossess the demised premises and remove all persons, and under no circumstances 
shall this Lease be assigned or transferred by operation of law. 
 
18. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 
 
Subject to the Insurance provisions contained herein, if the Leased Premises or any part thereof 
or any appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural defects that the same 
cannot be used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the right within ninety (90) days 
following damage to elect by notice to Landlord to terminate this Lease as of the date of such 
damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of the Leased Premises, and if such damage 
does not render the Leased Premises unusable for Tenant's purposes, Landlord shall promptly 
repair such damage at the cost of the Landlord. In making the repairs called for in this paragraph, 
Landlord shall not be liable for any delays resulting from strikes, governmental restrictions, 
inability to obtain necessary materials or labor or other matters which are beyond the reasonable 
control of Landlord. Tenant shall be relieved from paying rent and other charges during any 
portion of the Lease term that the Leased Premises are inoperable or unfit for occupancy, or use, 
in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. Rentals and other charges paid in advance for any such 
periods shall be credited on the next ensuing payments, if any, but if no further payments are to 
be made, any such advance payments shall be refunded to Tenant subject to the provisions of this 
Lease which may permit Landlord to retain such payments. The provisions of this paragraph 
extend not only to the matters aforesaid, but also to any occurrence which is beyond Tenant's 
reasonable control and which renders the Leased Premises, or any appurtenance thereto, 
inoperable or unfit for occupancy or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. 
 
19. TITLE 
 
A.   Subordination.  Tenant shall, upon the request of Landlord in writing, subordinate this 
Lease to the lien of any present or future institutional mortgage upon the Leased Premises 
irrespective of the time of execution or the time of recording of any such mortgage. Provided, 
however, that as a condition to such subordination, the holder of any such mortgage shall enter 
first into a written agreement with Tenant in form suitable for recording to the effect that: 
 
(i)   Foreclosure.  In the event of foreclosure or other action taken under the mortgage by the 
holder thereof, this Lease and the rights of Tenant hereunder shall not be disturbed but shall 
continue in full force and effect so long as Tenant shall not be in default hereunder; and  



Page 12 of 16 

(ii)  Such holder shall permit insurance proceeds and condemnation proceeds to be used for 
any restoration and repair required by the Damage and Insurance provisions of this Lease.  
Tenant agrees that if the mortgagee or any person claiming under the mortgagee shall succeed to 
the interest of Landlord in this lease, Tenant will attorn to and recognize said mortgagee or 
person as its Landlord under the terms of this Lease, provided that said mortgagee or person for 
the period during which said mortgagee or person respectively shall be in possession of the 
Leased Premises and thereafter their respective successors in interest shall assume all of the 
obligations of Landlord hereunder. The word "mortgage", as used herein includes mortgages, 
deeds of trust or other similar instruments, and modifications, and extensions thereof. The term 
"institutional mortgage" means a mortgage securing a loan from a bank (commercial or savings) 
or trust company, insurance company or pension trust or any other lender institutional in nature 
and constituting a lien upon the Leased Premises.  
 
C.   Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and agrees that upon Tenant paying the rent and 
observing and performing all of the terms, covenants and conditions on Tenant's part to be 
observed and performed hereunder, that Tenant may peaceably and quietly have, hold, occupy 
and enjoy the Leased Premises in accordance with the terms of this Lease without hindrance or 
molestation from Landlord or any persons lawfully claiming through Landlord. 
 
20. ATTORNEY’S FEES 
 
In the event of any legal action between Landlord and Tenant to enforce any of the provisions 
and/or rights hereunder, the unsuccessful party to such action agrees to pay to the other party all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in prosecuting or defending 
such action, and if judgment is recovered in such action or proceeding, such costs, expenses and 
attorney’s fees shall be included in and as a part of such judgment. 
 
21. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given by or to either Landlord or Tenant pursuant to this Lease, shall 
be in writing and shall be forwarded by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
For Landlord:      For Tenant: 
        
Town of Florence     Pastor 
Town Manager     Mosaic Church of the Nazarene 
P.O. Box 2670      2363 N. Smithsonian Drive 
775 North Main Street     Florence, AZ 85132 
Florence, AZ 85132      
 
22. WAIVER 
 
 A waiver of any breach of this Lease, or of any of the terms or conditions by either party 
hereto, shall not be deemed a waiver of any repetition of such breach or in any way affect any 
other terms or conditions hereof. No waiver shall be valid or binding unless it shall be in writing 
and signed by the parties. 



Page 13 of 16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the day and 
year first written above. 
 
LANDLORD: 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
            
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor   Date 
 
    
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



Page 14 of 16 

TENANT: Mosaic Church of the Nazarene, an Arizona non-profit corporation 
 
 
 
By:       
 
Its:    Owner      
 
Date:         
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )  ss. 
County of Pinal  ) 
 
On this ____ day of _________________, 2014, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared __________________, and that as such, being authorized so to do, executed 
the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained. 
 
(Seal and Expiration Date) 
 
             
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
      



Page 15 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Business Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















P
ag

e 
16

 o
f 

16
 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 B

 
 

T
en

an
t M

od
if

ic
at

io
ns

 

 



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9d. 

MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Scott Barber 
                                     Human Resources Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1473-14: Personnel Policy  
                     Amendments 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1473-14 Personnel Policy                            Meeting Date:  October 20, 2014 
Page 1 of 1  

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
It is recommended the Mayor and Council adopt Resolution No. 1473-14:  A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE PERSONNEL POLICY.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 

The current Personnel Policy was approved in April 2013, with an effective date of July 
1, 2013.  We have been drafting a new Risk Management Manual and have been 
reviewing our current employee drug testing policy.  In this project, we came to see the 
need to expand the language in the Personnel Policy document to make sure we take 
full advantage of the applicable provisions of state law.  The proposed revisions to 
Article II, Section 216 – Employee Drug/Alcohol Testing, reflect the recommendations.  
In addition we discovered two typographical errors in Policy Article IX, Section 903 – 
Administrative Suspension, that we need to correct. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact with this recommended action. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1473-14, approving amendments to the 
Town of Florence Personnel Policy.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1473-14 
Personnel Policy Amendments (2 pages)  



RESOLUTION NO 1473-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
PERSONNEL POLICY.   

 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that 

the current Town of Florence Personnel Policy is in need of revision; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 14-33 of the Code of the Town of Florence and other 

applicable laws required that the Council take formal action by Resolution to declare the 
relevant document to be public record, and to approve and adopt such amendments; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, hereby adopts the recommended amendments to The Town of 
Florence Personnel Policy, Article II, Section 216 (Employee Drug/Alcohol Testing) and 
Article IX, Section 903 (Administrative Suspension). 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council this 20th day of October, 2014. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
    
 
_____________________________  ________________________________  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



 

  

Section 216 – Employee Drug/Alcohol Testing 
 
The Town of Florence recognizes that the use of alcohol and/or drugs inhibits a person from 
performing duties safely and effectively.  The Town’s intention is to maintain a safe, healthful, 
and productive work environment for its employees, and to uphold the Town’s reputation in the 
community.  Accordingly, this policy provision is included to provide consistent and relevant 
guidelines for all employees regarding the use of alcohol and drugs, and to comply with the 
provisions of ARS 23-493.  It is the policy of the Town of Florence that no employee shall report 
to work after having participated in the illegal use of drugs or while under the influence of 
alcohol or drugs, nor possess or use such substances while they are on duty. 
 
Pre-Employment Testing:  Employees hired in classifications listed on the “Town of Florence 
Classifications Subject To Pre-Employment Drug Testing” list, will be required to undergo a 
post-offer, pre-employment drug test.  Current employees to be promoted, demoted or 
transferred into classifications included on the list, but who are not currently in a classifications 
included on the list, will be required to undergo a post-offer, pre-promotion/demotion/transfer 
drug test.  Any candidate for employment who tests positive for controlled substances shall not 
be hired.  Any current employee who tests positive for controlled substances in a pre-
promotion/demotion/transfer test shall not be promoted/demoted/transferred and will be subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 
 
Other Testing:  All Town of Florence employees are subject to alcohol and/or drug testing.  If a 
supervisor reasonably believes an employee is at work under the influence of alcohol or drugs, 
the employee may be required to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test.  All employees who are 
required to obtain and maintain a Commercial Driver’s License are subject to the testing 
requirements under Federal regulations (refer to the Town Risk Management Manual for the 
specific provisions of this type of testing).  For testing not related to the CDL regulations, a 5-
panel, non-NIDA test shall be used (marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines [including 
methamphetamines], opiates, phencyclidine [PCP]).  Testing methods and collection procedures 
shall be generally those prescribed by standard protocol and compliant with the requirements of 
the Federal CDL drug and alcohol testing regulations.  Refusal by an employee to submit to a 
drug and/or alcohol test shall result in termination from Town employment as provided in these 
rules.  An employee testing positive for alcohol and/or drugs shall be subject to disciplinary 
action up to and including termination.  An employee testing positive for alcohol and/or drugs 
shall have the right to request the written test results, and shall have the right to request a 
meeting  with his/her supervisor or department director to explain the test results.  All test results 
shall be treated in accordance with reasonable standards of privacy, and shall only be disclosed 
to the Human Resources Director or designee, and other individuals as determined by the Human 
Resources Director or designee, or as provided by law or regulation.  Town employees may be 
subject to other types of drug/alcohol testing as provided in the Town Risk Management Manual, 
including but not limited to post-accident testing.  An employee taking prescribed drugs or over-
the-counter medications that may potentially impair  the safe performance of his/her duties must 
notify the supervisor who shall determine if the employee is able to safely perform his/her duties. 



 

  

Section 903 - Administrative Suspension 
 
The Town Manager (or his/her designateee in a given case) may suspend an employee with pay 
(administrative leave with pay) pending an investigation or for any other reason as the Town 
Manager may deem appropriate.  An administrative suspension with pay is not considered a 
disciplinary action in and of itself, and is not subject to the grievance or appeal procedures. 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Charles Montoya, Town Manager 

Cc:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 

  Department Heads 

Date:  October 14, 2014 

Re:  Weekly Update  

Department Updates 
 

Community Development 

 Padilla Park construction nearly complete. Working on final punch list items and 
preparing for park dedication. 

 Anthem at Merrill Ranch restaurant under construction.  
 Pinal County Credit Union was completed and opened for business. 
 Working with library team with focus on master planning, architectural design and 

theming issues. Library and recreation complex Design Review going to the 
Planning Commission this week. 

 The Adaptive Reuse Policy is being presented to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission this week. 

 Staff provided comments to Pinal County on a proposed Comp Plan Amendment 
for a planned solar farm project east of Florence. 

 Working with Clerk to get recent code amendments placed into our Town Code 
books and on our webpage. 

 Working with ADWR to begin process of updating our Town Floodplain 
ordinance. 

 Working with facilities on plans for new Community Development office. Tenant 
Improvement plans are being bid this week. 

 
Economic Development 

 The Chamber of Commerce completed the new events panel for the downtown 
kiosk and submitted it for printing. The other two panels will be installed today. 

 Flyers were posted to the Town’s website promoting the availability of commercial 
space at the Silver King Marketplace and Brunenkant building. The flyers were also 
posted to the APS Arizona Prospector website. 

 A new business survey is in the process of being developed. The questions and 
results from the survey conducted in 2012 were reviewed to determine which 
questions should be included on the new survey.  

 The draft property lease policy and updated Silver King Marketplace lease policy 
were forwarded to the Town Attorney for review. 

 
 
 



Facility Maintenance 
 Town Hall exterior painting completed. 
 Inspection of old credit union to review TI improvements, acquire keys and data com 

interfaces. 
 Scheduled exterminator to inspect Brunenkant Building for termite damage. 
 Met with Contractor for water heater installation at Silver King. 
 Warranty issue of concrete foyer at Fire Station No. 2 started. 

 
Finance Department 

 Closing out year-end and preparing for 2013-2014 fiscal year audit. 
 Audit work begins the week of October 27. 
 Working through client list in housing rehabilitation program to determine 

eligibility. 
 Received notice of award from Firehouse Subs for a grant to obtain 

approximately $12,000 in emergency rescue equipment. 
 
Fire Department 

 Notification of grant award from Firehouse Subs for $12.588 for technical rescue 
equipment 

 SOPs turned into Administration for final approval. 
 Met with Southwest Ambulance of unit hours and staffing of ambulances  
 Florence homecoming next week truck in Parade 
 Fire sign attached. 

  
Fleet Maintenance 
 One (1) vehicle serviced for preventative maintenance and twelve (12) for repairs. 

 
Information Technology Department 

 Completed and provided the required specifications for the North Florence Tower 
SCADA hardware installation.  

 Performed a walkthrough and began the development of data/voice plans for 
Community Development’s new building in preparation for the future move. 

 Completed the underground fiber conduit infrastructure drawings for the Territory 
Square project. 

 
Library 

 As of October 1st, we are able to track wireless user sessions. For the week of 
October 1st – October 7th, there were 259 wireless sessions.  

 Fourteen “STEAM Kits for Communities” have been borrowed by staff at 
Florence K-8 school for use over the next two weeks. One goal of the program is 
to promote resource sharing with the local schools. 

 Children’s Librarian conducted outreach visits to the morning and afternoon 
Anthem Preschool Pathways classes at Anthem K-8 school. 

 Family Storytime visited Florence Fire Station No. 2 on October 8th. Special 
thanks go out to the crew for putting on a great tour. 



 The Friends of the Library (FOL) met on October 8th members were provided with 
an update on the status of the new Library facility. 

 Design meetings continue with Low Mountain Construction, Inc. 
 2,098 total items were circulated between Saturday, October 4th and Friday, 

October 10th. 197 holds were placed. 
 
Parks and Recreation 

 Staff attended the weekly meeting with the Territory Square – Library/Recreation 
Complex Project Team and Low Mountain Design-Build Team.  Met with APS to 
discuss power needs for the project and future development of Territory Square.  

 Staff met with a representative from Valley Rain Construction with regard to 
possible improvements to the parks.  Improvement projects being identified 
include installing new drinking fountains, sidewalk connectivity, irrigation 
improvements, and ball field improvements.   

 An Invitation for Bids was issued for the Heritage Park Ball Field Lighting Project 
on Wednesday, October 8.  A Pre-Bid meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 
October 22 at 1:30 p.m.  The bid deadline is Wednesday, October 29 at 3:00 
p.m.  $150,000 was included in the FY15 budget for this project. 

 A Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) Pre-Submittal Meeting for the Fitness and 
Recreation Center Project was held on Friday, October 10.  35 individuals 
representing 29 different firms were in attendance.  The deadline for Statements 
of Qualifications is October 22, 2014. 

 Park Staff continues to water the over-seeded turf at the parks.  Athletic fields 
continue to be closed while the new turf gets established.  Staff encourages the 
public to stay off the turf for the next few weeks to allow the turf to grow. 

 The Padilla Park Dedication is scheduled for Thursday, October 23 at 6:00 p.m.  
The event is open to the public. 

 The first Concert in the Park is scheduled for Thursday, October 23 at 7 p.m. at 
Padilla Park.  Tequila Highways will be performing.  Thank you to Main Street 
Family Practice for sponsoring this year’s concerts. 

 The Library/Recreation Complex Groundbreaking Ceremony is scheduled for 
Thursday, October 30 at 4 p.m. at the site across from Town Hall.  The Low 
Mountain Construction, Inc. is assisting with the event.  The business community 
has agreed to take part in the event, with nearly every restaurant in Florence 
agreeing to provide food for the event.  This “Taste of Florence” will add to the 
excitement of the groundbreaking ceremony.  The public is invited to attend this 
exciting, FREE event to kick off the project. 

 The Halloween Fright Fest is scheduled for Friday, October 31 from 5:30-8:30 
p.m. at Heritage Park.  Local businesses are encouraged to participate this year 
by hosting a game booth at the event.  There will be numerous activities and 
LOTS of FREE candy for the kids. 

 
 
 
 
 



Police 
 One Dispatcher position has been filled.  
 Continued dispatch testing has been taking place to fill the remaining positions 
 14 child safety seats were given to the department by the Governor’s Office of 

Highway Safety 
 Officers and Volunteers had a booth at Crime Prevention Night sponsored by the 

Casa Grande Police Department.    
 8 citations were issued 
 3 subjects were arrested on warrants 
 3 subjects were arrested for driving under suspension 
 Staff met to discuss IGA for dispatching Superior FD and Superior PD 

 
Public Works Admin / Engineering 

 Deficiency in concrete placement at Spirit Way Arch Culvert – Phase IV tentatively 
resolved with Pulte. 

 Butte Avenue Reconstruction Paving Project started, delayed by weather; 
maintenance to be performed during weekend.  

 Started Safety Study Analysis at Hunt/Attaway intersection. 
 Pulte advised Town of landscaping/escrow issues on Hunt Highway for acceptance. 
 Formulating potential Projects for GO Bonds for CFD at Anthem. 
 Pinal County rehabilitated Cooper Road/Rhea Road drainage crossing. 
 Met with ADOT to finalize Traffic Impact Analysis on Main Street Extension.  ADOT 

requested realignment of access due to CCA driveway.  Town to confer with CCA on 
alternatives. 

 Bidding of North Florence WWTP generator modifications started. 
 Recommended award of Fire Sprinkler addition at Fire Station No. 1. 
 Reviewing Dry Utilities Easements at Johnson Ranch Estates. 
 Completed inspection/punch list review of Sunrise Estates II for acceptance by 

Town. 
 
Sanitation 

 Corresponded with PD Code Enforcement and Utility Billing on bulk trash issues. 
 

Streets 
 Provided staff for traffic control at Main Street crosswalks while 

crosswalk/intersection project was ongoing. 
 Provided staff for traffic control for West Butte Improvement Project.  
 Continued grading on Main Street Extension project. 
 Continued painting curbs red around Padilla Park. 



Utilities 
 Electrical transfer switch at Well 1 generator has malfunctioned. Transfer to 

onsite generator critical for public safety. A new transfer switch has been ordered 
and paperwork submitted for emergency approval. In the case of loss of electrical 
power, the generator will have to be hard wired into the circuit and staff has 
insured that an electrician is available to make the connection. Cost is 
approximately $5,100 for new switch and installation. 

 Notice of Award for work at the SWWTP issued to Currier Construction. 
Contractor has mobilized. 

 Work continues on Well 3B. Work includes installation of underground electrical 
conduit and chlorine building relocation for temporary use. 

 Staff locating waterline in North Florence in support of the new waterline design 
from Caliente to Vista Hermosa. 

 Staff repaired a water main break on Mohave Way in Florence Gardens. Desert 
Boring had to be called in to assist due to the Towns vacuum machine breaking 
down. Staff will make recommendation to Town Manager for the replacement of 
the vacuum machine within the next two weeks. 

 Staff cleaned main sewer lines in the Indian village and replaced a manhole ring 
and lid. 

 Pre-bid meeting for the Bailey Street Waterline will be conducted on October 
16th. Bid opening will be October 30th. 
 






	October 20, 2014 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Purchase of Tymco 600 Regenerative Air Sweeper
	7b. Electrical District No. 2 Reimbursement
	7c. September 2, 2014 TC Minutes
	September 15, 2014 TC Minutes

	7d i. August 20, 2014 Minutes Library
	7d ii. June 19, 2014 Minutes PZ
	July 10, 2014 Minutes PZ
	September 4, 2014 Minutes PZ


	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8a. Library and Recreation Complex Update

	9. NEW BUSINESS
	9a. Jeff Wooley Resignation
	9b. R.K. Sanders, Inc. Contract for Diversion Dam Rd Improvements
	9c. Florence Fudge Company Lease Agreement
	9d. Resolution No. 1473-14 Personnel Policy Amendments

	10. MANAGER'S REPORT
	Manager's Report.pdf




